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VIETINBANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND
&% floor, Cua Nam Market Shopping Center Building, 34 Cua Nam, Hoan Kiem disirict, Ha Nai

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS OF
THE FUND MANAGEMENT COMPANY

The Board of General Directors of VistinBank Fund Management Company Limited (*the Fund Management
Company”) present this report and the financtal statements of the Fund for the year ended 31 December
2024.

GEMNERAL INFORMATION

THE FUND

The VietinBank Bond Investment Fund (“the Fund®) was established as an apen-anded fund on 0B
September 2017 in accordance wilh Law on Securities No. 54/2018/QH14 dated 25 Movember 201 g,
Decree 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 detalling the implementation of a number of articles of
the Law on Securities, Circular No. 88/20200TT-BTC dated 16 Movember 2020 of the Ministry of Finance
guiding the operation and management of the securities investmen! funds snd relevant regulation
documents.

The State Securities Commission ("SSC") granted the Fund:

» Certificate of Initial public offering of Fund Units No.: 32/GCN-UBCK on 07 July 2017,
» Operating License No. 27/GCN-UBCK by SSC on 06 September 2017, allowing the Fund to operate
indefiniataly.

The Fund's Initial charter capital mobilized was VND 66,000,000,000 equivalent to 6,800,000 fund units
which were raised through its initial public offering. As at 31 December 2024, the Fund's contributed capital
stands at VND 45,282,991,900 corresponding to to 4,528,299, 19 fund units at par value.

BOARD OF REPRESENTATIVES

The members of the Board of Representatives during the year and at the date of this report are as follows:
Mame Pogition Date of appointment/dismissal

Mr. Dao Kien Trung Chairman Appointed on 24 April 2020
Ms. Nguyen Viet Hoang Member Appainted on 06 April 2021
Ms. Nguyen Thi Hanh Member Appointed on 12 August 2022
FUND MANAGEMENT COMPANY

VietinBank Bond Investment Fund is managed by VietinBank Fund Management Company Limited {“the
Fund Management Company”). The company was established under the Business License No. S0/UBCK-
GP issued by the SSC on 26 October 2010, with the latest amendment No. 46/GPBC-UBCK on 21 June
2024,

The Board of General Directors and Chief Accountant of the Fund Management Company during the year and
at the date of this report ara as follows:

MName Position Appointment datesresignation date

Mr. Nguyen Hong Duc Acting Managing Director Appointed on 15 January 2025

Mr. Khang Phan Duc General Director Dismissed on 15 January 2025

Ms. Phan Hai Sam Deputy General Director  Appointed on 30 March 2022

Me. Dao Thi Yen Aceountant in charge Appointed on 01 Oclober 2024

Ms. Hoang Thi Dung Chief fccountant Dismissed on 22 August 2024
Accountant In charge Appointed on 22 August 2024

Dismissed on 01 October 2024

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE OF THE FUND MANAGEMENT COMPANY

The legal representative of the Company is Mr. Le Duy Hai - Chairman of the Board of Members, appointed
on D5/10V2022 according to Decision No. 539/QD-HDQT-NHCT-NS2 dated 03/10/2022 of the Board of
Directors of Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade.

THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND

The members of the Board of Management of the Fund during the period and at the date of this repart are
a5 follows:
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VIETINEANK BEOND INVESTMEMNT FUND
6" fioor, Cua Nam Market Shopping Center Building, 34 Cua Nam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha Noi

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS OF
THE FUND MANAGEMENT COMPANY (Continued)

Name Position Date of appointment/reappointment

Ms. Phan Hal Sam Deputy General Direclor Appainted on 13 January 2023

Ms. Ngo Thi Lan Hueng  Manager of the Fund Appointed on 14 May 2021
Management Department

The Supervisory Bank of the Fund for the period and at the reporting date is Bank for Investment and
Development of Vielnam JSC = Ha Thanh Branch.

AUDITORS

International Auditing and Valuation Company Limited has been appointed to audit the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024,

THE FUND MANAGEMENT COMPANY'S RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE FINANGIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board of General Directors of VietinBank Fund Management Company Limited ("the Board") is
responsible for ensuring that the financial statements provide a true and fair view of the Fund's financial
position, investment portfolio as of December 31, 2024, as well as its ocperating results, changes in net assat
value, fund unit transactions, and cash flows for the year then ended.
In preparing these financial statements, the Board is required to:
® Gelect and consistently apply appropriate accounting policies;
® Make reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates;
# State compliance with applicable accounting standards, subject to any material deparures
distlosed and explained in the financial statemeants; and
¥ Prepare the financial statements on a geoing concern basis, unless it is deemed inappropriate to
assume the Fund will continue its operations.
The Board of General Directors is alsa responsible for;
®  Maintaining accurate accounting records that fairly present the Fund's financial position at any given
time and ensuring compliance with the registerad accounting system:
¥» Safeguarding the Fund's assets: and
# Implementing reasonable measures to prevent and detect fraud and other iregularities.

The Board of General Direclors confirms that it has complied with these requirements in preparing the
accompanying financizl statements,

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS

The Board of General Directors does hereby state that, in its apinion, the accompanylng financial statements
give a true and fair view of the financial position, investment portfolio as at 31 December 2024, the resulls
of its operations, changes in its net asset value, trading of fund units and its cash flow for the year ended
on the same day in accardance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Accounting Regime
applicable to open-ended funds and other statulory requirements relevant to the preparation and
presantation of the financial statements.

’_,:,___.Eﬂbﬂ' alf of the Board of General Directors

_.2 of the Fupnd Management Company
’ "{l/;:," CimG TY '{‘T,S,\ /m

Deputy General Director
Hanoi, 256 March 2025
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1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

REPORT OF THE FUND MANAGEMENT COMPANY
GENERAL INFORMATION

Investment objectives

The Fund's invesiment objective is to maximize returns and preserve investors'capital by investing
in bills, bonds, valuable papers and other fixed-income instruments with the minimum proportion in
these assets accounting for eighty percent (80%) of the net asset value.

The performance of the Fund

According to the audited financial statements of the Fund, as of current period, changes in net assat
value on a fund unit is 5,97% compared to the value at the beginning of the period.

The Fund's investment policies and strategies

Investment siralegies

The Fund has flexibility in asset allocation according to investment strategles to provide long-term
returns and stability by investing primarily in fixed income assets with good credit quality, The Fund
invests mainly in Govemment bonds, municipal bonds, Government-guaranteed bonds, listed
corporate bonds or privately issued corporate bonds by listed crganizations with a credit Institution's
payment guarantee or an issuer's commiimant to soquire at least once in 12 months and each time
commitment o buy back at least 30% of the Issue's value, certificates of deposit, deposit contracts,
derivatives listed and traded on the Stock Exchange and solely for the purpose of risk prevention
against the underlying securities holding by the Fund.

The allocation of above assets depends on the available investment opportunities and the
investment team's assessment of the risks and returns of these opportunities.

Assels allowed to be nvested in
Assets selected for investment only consist of the follawings:
* Deposits at commercial banks in accordance with the law on banking;

*  Money market instruments include valuable papers, transferable instruments in accordance
with laws;

» Government debt instruments, bonds guaranteed by the Government, municipal bonds;

» Listed shares, shares registered for trading, listed bonds on the Stock Exchange, public fund
units;

¥ Public initial offering shares, bonds offered to the public/ corporate bonds under privately
piacement by listed organizations with a credit institution's payment guarantee or an issuer's
commitment to buy back at least once in 12 months and each time commitment to acquire at
least 30% of the issue's value:

* Derivative securities listed, traded on Stock Exchanges, and only for hedging purposes for the
underlying securities that the fund s holding;

¥ The arising rights tied to securities that the Fund is holding.

Investment in assets that are "Public initial offering shares, bands offered to the public/ corporate
bonds under privately placement by listed organizations with a credit institulion's payment
guarantee or an issuer's commitment to buy back at least once in 12 months and each time
commitment to acquire at least 30% of the issue's value” requires the following conditions:

* Regulated in the Fund Charter and Prospecius;

* Approved in writing by the Board of Representatives regarding the type, code of securities,
quantity, transaction value, time of execution;

» Sufficient documents proving the payment guarantee or commitment to buy back from the
issuer,

Fund classification

VietinBank Bond Investment Fund is an open-ended fund and has the cbligation to redeem the fund
units which have been offered to the public upon the request of investors,
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1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Short-term risk level

The Fund's investment strategy focuses on investing in debt instrurment market with low risk level.
Furthermoare, the risk of the investment portfolio will be minimized by investing in a variety of debt
instruments in accordance with the Fund's investment strategy.

Operation time of the Fund

VietinBank Bond Investment Fund was granted the Operating License No. 27T/GCN-UBCK by the
State Securities Commission on 6 September 2017,

VietinBank Bond Investment Fund is an open-ended fund and managed by VietinBank Fund
Management Company Limited during ils operating time, unless the Fund |s transferred lo be
managed by anather fund management company or is dissolved under the decision of the General
Meating of Investors.

The operating period of the fund is indefinite.

The Fund size al reporting date

As at 31 December 2024, the Fund's contributed capital was VND 45,292,891 900 at par value,
equivalent to 4,529,299.19 fund certificates. The Fund's NAV as at 31 December 2024 was VND
64,384 504,150,

Profit distribution policy

* The Fund Management Company shall distribute the Fund's profits to investors In accordance
with the approved plan of the General Meeting of Investors and the ratio decided by the Fund's
Board of Representatives and the profit distribution policy as disclosed in the prospectus. The
distributed profit shall be deducted from the Fund's retained earnings of the Fund's income. The
Fund Management Company shall only be entitied to distribute profits when the Fund has
completed or has sufficient financial capacity to fulfill its tax obligations and other financial
obligations as required by law. After the specified profit distribution, the Fund must still ensure
that it meets all due debts and other asset obligations.

» The plan and schedule for profit distribution must be publicly disclosed on the website of the
Fund Management Company. Each investor may decide to receive distributed profits by cash
or reinvest in the Fund provided that they have to clearly state their option in the application for
opening a fund unit trading account or by written documents sent to the Fund Management
Company. In no cholee is made, reinvestment in the Fund is automatically applied;

» The Fund distributes profits in the form of cash or fund units. The profit distribution by fund units
must be approved In advance by the General Meeting of Investors or by the Board of
Representatives (if tha |atest General Meeting of Investors has suthorized the Board of
Representatives to decide in accordance with the pravision of the Fund’s charter) or specifically
described in the Fund's charter, prospectus:

* The Fund Management Company must deduct all taxes, fees and charges In accordance with
the laws before distributing profits to investors.

Actual profit distribution per fund unit
Fram 01 January 2024 to 31 December 2024, the Fund did not distribute profit to investors,

OPERATING INFORMATION

Structure of the Fund's assels

Closing balance Opening balance
Listed bonds 16.51% 17.10%
Linlisted bonds 5.59% B8.56%
Certificates of deposits 71.13% B5.42%
Cash al banks and cash equivalent 0.81% 0.86%
Deposits with terms of over 3 months 0.62% 4.28%
Other assats 2.24% 1.78%

100.00% 100.00%
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2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Detailed operating figures

Year 2024 Year 2023
Met asset value ("NAVT) of the Fund 64,364 904,150 58,148 939,158
Total fund units in circulation 4,529 299,19 4,334 30913
NAV per one fund unit ) 14,217.41 13,415.96
;ﬂhgﬂl;ghe&l MNAV per one fund unit during the 14.217.41 13,415.95
::;ngast NAV per one fund unit during the 13.418.31 12.588.35
;:::Jrug price of one fund unit at the reporiing Not applicable Not applicable
The hi 1 closi ice of i .
mp?nrﬁﬁ;a:aﬁ u?f NG price ot ane fund unit ir the Not applicable Mot applicable
The lowest closing price of one fund unit in the "
reporting period Not applicable Mot applicable
Total growth (%) per one fund unit
= Capital growth (%) per one fund unit 2
{Changes due to price fluctuations) Nt appiicatie Not applicable
+ Income growth (%) per one fund unit (Based
oy o el o) Mot applicable Mot applicable
Gross distribution per one fund unit - -
Net distribution per one fund unit - -
Yoar 2024
Fund sperating expensa ratio (%) 1.61%
Portfolie turnover rate (%) 61.43%
Growth over periods
Total growth of
Period NAV/fund unit
From inception to the reporting date £2147%
Annual Growth
Period Year 2024
Growth rate (%) per one fund unit 5.97%
Information on the porifolio and NAV of the fund
Table 01: Quantity of Fund unit and NAV/Fund unit
&, 600.000,00
4,550.000,00
§.500.000,00
2,450.000,00
4.400.000,00 |
(] 4.350,000,00
i I ' i 4:300,000,00
Ml i : 4.250.000,00
| L AL FAELLS - 8.200,000,00
o ] 1 B tw 9 B e e b I W o
F TS o F T
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2.5

Nao. Item Yoear 2024
1 Interest receivable 2,873,232,145
2 Dividends and coupons receiveble 1.827 44 B56
3 Actual profit anses from investment aclivities {191,971,271)
4  Changes In the value of investments in the period 49,867 466

Total 4,558,972,956

Profit distributed on a fund unit (net value and gross value) in the reporting period- the Fund does
not distribute profits in 2024,

Fund operaling expenses rallo, portfollo turnover rate and notes of the operaling expenses
difference of the Fund:

Na, Itern Year 2024
1 Rate of management fee paid to the Fund Managemant 1.00%
Company/Average net asset value during the period
2 Rate of custody and supervision fee paid to Supervisory Bank/Met 0.08%
assel value during the period
3 Rate of fund administration fee, transfer agent fee and other 0.25%

expenses paid by the Fund Management Company to related
service providers/Average net asset value during the period

4 Rate of auditing fee paid to auditing organization (if any)/Average 0.07%
net asset value during the period
5 Rate of expense of legal consultancy services, quotation services 0.21%

and cther reasonable services, remuneration for the Fund
representative board/Average net asset value during the period

L] Furnd aperating expenzoes ratio 1.61%
T Paortfolio turnover rate in the period 61.43%
Profit of the Fund
Itermn Year 2024 Year 2023
Realized profit/{loss) 3,516,388,128 3,583,135,320
Unrealized (loss)/profit 45 BET 468 {16,434 530)
Undistributed profit 3,566,255,594 3,576,700,730

MARKET DESCRIPTION DURING THE PERIOD
Vietnam's economic situation in 2024

In the context of unpredictable fluctuations in the world economic and political situation, our
country’s socig-economic situation in 2024 has achieved positive results, specifically as follows:

{1) GDP In 2024 is estimated to increase by 7.098% compared to the previous year, only lower than
the growth rate of 2018, 2019 and 2022 in the period 2011-2024. In the increase in the total
added value of the whole economy, the agriculture, forestry end fishery sector increased by
3.27%, contributing 5.37%; the industrial and construction sector increased by 8.24%,
contributing 45.17%; the service sector increased by 7.38%, coniributing 49.46%.

{2) The consumer price index (CPI) in December 2024 increased by 0.29% compared to the
previous month. Compared to December 2023, the CPF| in December 2024 increasad by 2.94%.
The average CPI in the fourth quarter of 2024 increased by 2.87% compared to the fourth
quarier of 2023. For the whole year of 2024, CPI will increase by 3.63% compared to the
previous year, reaching the target set by the National Assembly.

{3} In 2024, the total export and import tumover of goods will reach 786,29 billion LISD, up 15.4%

over the previous year, of which exports will increase by 14.3%; imperts increased by 16.7%.

The trade balance of goods has a trade surplus of 24,77 billion USD.

The USD/VND exchange rate recorded a depreciation of 5.03% by the end of 2024, significantly

lower than many countries in the region, Notably, major currencies such as the Japanese Yen,

the Korean Won or the Taiwan dollar have all depreciated by over 10%. In this context,
maintaining a reasonable depreciation of the Vietnamese dong not only helps control inflation
T
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below 4% - reaching the target set by the National Assembly - but alse creates conditions for
credit institutions to reduce lending rates, support businesses to recover and develop
preduction and business.

(5) Deposit interest rates tend to increase in the last months of 2024, As of December 31, 2024,
the average 12-month interest rate of the commercial banking group reached 5.5% (0.4%
higher than at the beginning of the year). Meanwhile, the average interest rate of state-owned
commercial banks remained unchanged at 4.7%/year (0.25% lower than at the beginning of the
year). In the context that credit growth |s growing faster than the growth rate of capital
mobilization, this shows the bank’s flexibility in securing capital o serve the economy, while
maintaining the safely and liquidity of the system.

{6) As of December 31, 2024, the economy's credit increased by about 15.08% compared to the

end of 2023, Credit focuses on production, business, and priority sectors, creating favorable
conditions for credit institutions to provide credit capital for the economy.

Curroncy market

k102024, the State Bank has oriented monetary policy in the direction of easing, and at the same
time proactively responded fiexibly to world and domestic economic developments to implement
policies to create favorable conditions for businesses and people to access bank credit capital,
restoring production and business, contributing to promoting growth associated with
macreeconomic stabilty, inflation confrol, and cperational safety of the credit institution system.

B The SBY continues to maintain the same operating interest rates In the context that world
interest rates are still anchored at a high level, crealing conditions for credit institutions to
access capital from the SBV at low costs, thereby having conditions to support the economy;
continue to direct credit institutions to reduce operating costs to sirive to reduce lending interest
rates, and at the same time, request credit institutions to report and publicly anncunce the
average lending inlerest rate, deposit interest rate difference and averzge lending on the
website of credit institutions,

¥ The 58V has proaclively adjusted the credit growih target for credit institutions on August 28,
2024 and Movember 2B, 2024 sccording to specific principles, ensuring publicity and
transparency in the condition that inflation is well controlled below the target level and to
promptly meet capital for the economy, support production and business development; at the
same tima, continue to implement the pelicy of the National Assembly and the Government an
studying the gradual lifiing of the measure of assigning credit growth targets,

Bond market

¢ According to VEMA data compiled fram HNX and SSC, as of the date of information disclosure
on December 31, 2024, there were 54 individual corporate bond Issuances worth VND 56,753
billion and 1 public issuance worth YND 800 billion in December 2024. For the whale year of
2024, there will be 429 private placements worth VND 410,544 billion and 22 public offerings
worth VND 32,914 billion.

B In December, businesses repurchased VND 27 458 billion of bonds ahead of schedule, down
36% over the same period in 2023. In 2025, it is estimated that there will be about VND 216,670
billion of maturing bonds, of which the majority are real estate bonds with VND 120,640 billian,
equivalent to 55.6%. Regarding the abnormal information disclosure situation, there are 3 new
late interest payment bend codes with a total value of WND 80.3 billion,

» During the period when the corporate bond market faced a crisis with many lssuers
axperiencing late bond payments, the issuance velume in 2022 and 2023 decreased sharply to
a lower level than in 20158, However, in 2024, the market will begin to recover and individual
bond issuance has grown again compared to 2019 before Covid-18,

Stock market

As of December 31, 2024, the VN-Index reached 1,266 78 poinis, up 12.1% compared to the end
of 2023, The stock market capilalization reached nearly VND 7.2 million billion, up 21.2% compared
to the end of 2023, equivalent to 70.4% of the estimated GDF in 2023; the average transaction
value reached 21.1 trillion VND/session, up 19.9% compared to the average of the previous year.
In 2024, the stock market will operate stably, the size of the stock market capitalization will increase
by 20.6% compared to the end of 2023,

In 2024, aleng with the efforts of regulatory agencies, the market has had many positive changes
in the process towards upgrading to an emerging market. In particular, it must be mentioned the
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issuance of Circular 68/2024/TT-BTC regulating the advance deposit of foreign institutional
investors when trading and requiring information disclosure on the stock market. In addition, the
Law on Securities (amended) was also approved at the Bth session of the 15th National Assembly,

By the end of the year, Vielnam had 8.2 million securities accounts, accounting for 5.3% of the
population, exceeding the target of 5% set out in the Stock Market Restructuring and Insurance
Scheme to 2020, with a vision to 2025,

DETAILS OF THE FUND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Details of the Fund's operation
Year 2024
Income growth per fund unit Mot applicable
Capital growth per fund unit Mot applicable
Total growth per fund unit 5.97%
Annual growth {3%) per fund unit Not applicable
Growth of struetured porifolio Mot epplicable
Monthly growth chart of the Fund during the year 2024
NAV Statistics
14.400.00 55.000.000,000
14.300,00 64.000.000.000
63.000.000.000
14,000,00 52.000.000.000
13, 800,00 £1.000.000.000
£0.000.000,000
1360000 55, 000,000,000
13.400.00 58.000.000,000
57000000, 000
SRR 56,000.000.000
12,000,060 55,000, 000.000
-] 1] ] e I i3 i ] I | B il b
F P P TP
L ! ~
A "»Eﬁ S AR T T
oAV Fund unit NAY
Changes in NAV
Rate of
Closing Balance Opening Balance change
MAV of the Fund 64,394 904,150 58,148,939,189 10.74%
NAV per fund unit 14,217.41 13,415.96 5.87%
Statistics on investors holding fund certificate at the time of the report:
Number of
Investment fund Numberof  helding fund Holding
i investors certificato propaortion
Less than 5,000 REE] 103,118.72 2.28%
From 5,000 to 10,000 7 50,173.51 1.11%
From 10,000 to 50,000 3 63,492 47 1.40%
From 50,000 to 500,000 1 156,289,809 3.45%
More than 500,000 1 4,1566,224.60 91.76%

Total 360  4.529.299,19 100%
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Board of Management of VietinBank Fund Management Company Limited (“VietinBank

Capital")
Mr. Le Duy Mr. Le Duy Hal currently holds the position of Deputy General Director of
Hai VietinBank cum Chairman of the Board of Members of VietinBank Fund
Management Company.
Chairman  of 'With many years of experience in the financial market, Mr. Le Duy Hai used o
the Board of hold the following positions: Sales Manager, New World Fashion Group: Deputy
Members Director, DT Intemational Co., Ltd; Officers of Investment Department of
VietinBank, Secretary of the Secretariat of the Board of Management of
VietinBank; Head of VietinBank's Large Corporate Banking Department; Deputy
Director of Corporate Banking Division of VietinBank; Deputy Director of
VietinBank-Ba Dinh Branch; Director of Corporate Banking division at
VietinBank.
Mr. Le Duy Hal graduated with a bachelor's degree from Mational Economics
University; Master of Business Administration in UK,
Mr. Nguyen Mr. Mguyen Hong Duc currently holds the position of Member of the Board of
Hong Duc Members and Acting General Director of VietinBank Fund Management
Company.
Member of the \With many years of experience in management in the banking Industry, Mr.
Board of Nguyen Hong Duc has held the following positions: Head of International
Members cum Payment Department of Chifon Bank; Deputy General Director of Chifon Global
Ganeral Bank — Cambaodia Branch; Vice Chainman of CitiBank — Hanoi Branch; Deputy
Dirsctor General Director of PetroVietnam Global Commercial Joint Stock Bank; Deputy
General Director of Tien Phong Commercial Joint Stock Bank: Deputy General
Director of Petrolimex Petroleum Commercial Jolnt Stock Bank: Co-Director of
VietinBank — Germany Branch,
Mr. Nguyen Hong Duc graduated with a bachelor's degree from Foreign Trade
University; Master of Asian Institute of Technoloay.
Mr. Doan Mr. Doan Ngec Doan currently holds the position of Deputy Head of Capital
Ngoc Doan Markets Department of VietinBank cum Member of the Board of Members of
VietinBank Fund Management Company,
Memberofthe Mr. Doan Ngoc Doan has many years of experience working at BIDV and
Board of VietinBank. Mr. Doan Mgoc Doan is holding the pesition of Deputy Head of
Members Capital Markets Depariment al VietinBank.
Mr. Doan Ngoc Doan graduated with a bachelor's degree in Finance and
Banking from National Economics University.
Ms. Phan Hai  Ms. Phan Hai Sam currently holds the position of Deputy General Director of
Sam WietinBank Fund Management Company.
Ms. Phan Hai Sam has more than 28 years of experience working at VietinBank,
Depuly has held many important positions at VietinBank and its subsidiaries such as:
General Deputy Head of Treasury Blling Department, Deputy Head of VietinBank
Director Accounting System Depariment; Chief Accountant, Deputy General Director of
Vietnam Bank for Industry and Trade Securities Joint Stock Company;
Ms. Phan Hai Sam graduated with a bachelor's and master's degree in Finance
and Credit from Banking Academy. She was granted a Fund Management
Practice Certificate by the State Securities Commission,
The Fund's Management
Ms. Phan Hal  Ms. Phan Hai Sam currently holds the pasition of Deputy General Dirsctor of
Sam VietinBank Fund Management Company. Ms. Sam has 28 years of experience
working In the VietinBank system, holding positions such as: Depuly General
Director of the Treasury Department - TSC VietinBank, Chief Accountant of
Deputy VietinBank Securiies Company, Deputy Gerneral Director of VietinBank
General Securities Company,
Director

Ms. Sam graduated with a Masier's degree in Economics from Banking
Academy. She has been granted a fund management practice certificate by the
State Securities Commission.
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Ms. Ngo Thi Ms. Ngo Thi Lan Huong is currently the Head of Fund Management Department
Lan Huong of Vietinbank Fund Management Company.

Ms. Ngo Thi Lan Huong has over 14 years of experience in the fields of Financs,
Banking, Securities, and Fund Management in domestic and foreign enterprises.
Head of Fund s, Lan Huong used to work at Vietnam Bank Joint Stock Commercial Bank for
Management  industry and Trade - Head Office, Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi UF.J, Hanoi Branch,
Department Standard Chatered Bank Vietnam, FPT Fund Management Joint Stock
Company, Vina Securities Corporation, Vietnam Intellectual Fund Management
Joint Steck Company in many positions such as Head of Investment Department,
Director of Client Relations.

Ms. Ngo Thi Lan Huong graduated from Hanoi Foreign Trade University. She has
the Fund Management Practice Certificate issued by the State Securities
Commission in 2013, completed CFA Level 2 and the CMAG certificate in
Acquisition and anti-acquisition in the field of M&A,

The Fund's Board of Representatives

Mr. Dac Kien Trung  Mr. Trung graduated from Hanol Law University specializing in
International Law and University of Languages & International Studies

Chafrman of the specializing in English.
Board of In 2010, Mr. Trung was granted a management practice ceriificate by the
Represeniatives SSC and has many years of experience In the field of asset management.

Since 1959, Mr. Trung has experienced many different positions in varous
organizations such as C.Melchers GmbH, Corvet (Asia) AG, Grant
Thernton Vietnam Co., Ltd, Vietnam Technological and Commercial Joint
Stock Bank, FPT Corporation, FPT Fund Management Company, and
Asset Management Company - Vietnam Technological and Commercial

Joint Stock Bank,
Mr. Nguyen Viet Bachelor of Economics (Finance Academy): Major in Accounting: Master
Hoang of Economics majoring in Finance - Banking; MWational Auditor (CPA
Vietnam).

Member of the Board  From 2006 to present, Mr. Hoang has experienced many different positions
of Representatives i the accounting and auditing Industry. He has 6 years of experience as
an auditor at Thang Long Auditing and Coensulting Co., Ltd., worked as an
expert in Finance - Planning Department al Vinaconex Energy
Development and Construction Investment Joint Stock Company, and
Chief Accountant at Bai Thuong Hydropower Joint Stock Company.
Currently, he is working as Deputy Director in charge of Finance and
Planning at VCP Energy and Construction Jeint Stock Company, Head of
Auditing Department of Bai Thuong Hydropower Joint Stock Company and
Chief Accountant of Saigon Equipment Joint Stock Company.
Ms. Nguyen Thi Ms. Hanh holds a bacheler's degres in international law and a masters
Hanh degrea in economic law from Hanoi Law University. She also completed
her training as a lawyer at the Judicial Academy.
Member of the Board  Ms. Nguyen Thi Hanh has more than 10 years of experience working in law
of Representatives offices, in charge of legal affairs for businesses. Ms. Nguyen Thi Hanh has
worked at Vietinbank Capital with the legal position of Vietinbank Capital,
. in charge of legal activities for the Company.
74 _ Onbelidi.of the Board of Directors of the Fund Management Company,
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- "'_D'ﬁ'ﬁdﬁ'ty General Director
Ha Noi, 25 March 2025
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BANK

We are the Supervisory Bank of VietinBank Bond Investment Fund as at 31 December 2024 for the
financial period from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024, To our knowledge, from 1 January 2024 to 34
December 2024 VietinBank Bond Investment Fund was cperated and managed with the contents as follow:

a) The Fund's asset custody has complied with current securities laws and relevant legal documents, the
Fund's Charter and Prospectus,

b} Compliance with the investment limits prescribed in current securities laws on open-ended funds, the
Fund Charter, the Fund Prospectus and related legal documents.

At the valuation periods from May 14, 2024 to May 23, 2024, the Fund's investment ratio in bonds,
maney market instruments, term deposits and other fixed income instruments exceeded 80% of net
asset value as prescribed in Clause 14, Article 2 of Circular 98/2020/TT-BTC. From valuation period
of May 28, 2024, the Fund's investment portfolio structure has been adjusted within the permitted fime
limit specified in Clause 6, Aricle 24, Clause 6, Article 35 of Gircular 98/2020/TT-BTC.

Al the valuation periods from October 1st, 2024 to October 10, 2024, the investment ratio in assels
specified in points a, b, d, 4 and e, Clause 2, Article 35 of Circular 98/2020/TT-BTC, issued by
companies in the same group of companies with ownership relations with each other exceeded 30%
of the total assets of the Fund, which didn't meet the provisions in Point d, Clause 4, Article 35 of
Circular 88/2020/TT-BTC. From the valualion period of Cclober 15, 2024, the Fund's Investment
portfolio structure has been adjusted within the permitted period specified in Clause 7, Article 24,
Clause &, Article 35 of Circular 88/2020/TT-BTC.

¢) The valuation and assessment of assets of VietinBank Bond Investment Fund was in line with the Fund's
Charter, the Fund's Prospectus and other relevant legal documents.

d) Subscription and redemption of Fund units were in accordance with the Fund Charter, the Fund's
Prospectus and relevant legal documents.

e} During the year, the Fund did not distribute profits to its investors.

Hamai 25 March 2025

REFRESENTATIVES OF THE SUPERVISOR '
SUPERVISORY BANK

VU MINH HONG
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Cang ty TNHH Kiém todn va Binh gia Quéc té "Bﬂ
International Auditing and Valuation Company Limited

AUDIT AND VAL LATION

Ne. 28063/2024/BCTCHAY

——
——
= A

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 1

To: The investors
VietinBank Bond Investment Fund

We have audited the financial statemenis of VietinBank Bond Investment Fund {“the Fund"), a= prepared
on 25 March 2025 and set out on pages 15 to 50, which comprise the statement of financial pesition and
the staterment of investment portfolic as at 31 December 2024, and the income statement, the statement
of changes in net asset value, trading of fund units and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31
December 2024 and the notes to the financial statements.

The Board of General Directors of the Fund Management Company's responsibility

The Board of General Directors of VietinBank Fund Management Company Limited (hersinafier called “the
fund managemeni company”) Is responsible for the preparation and fair presantation of these financial
statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Accounting Regime
applicable to open—ended funds and the statutory requirements relevant to preparation and presentation
of financial statements, and for such intemal control as the Board of General Director of the Fund
Management Company determines is necessary to enable the preparation and presentation of the financial
slatements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

et

rr

A
Auditors’ responsibility ;.’f
Our responsibility s o express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit, We conducied

our audit In accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing, Those standards require that we comply

with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether

the financial staterments are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaln audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or errar. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal contrel relevant to the Fund's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund's internal
contral, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of sccounting estimates made by the Board of General Directors, as well as evaluating the
ovarall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for aur
audit opinion,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (Continue)

Auditor's Opinfon

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the VietinBank
Bond Investment Fund's financial position and investment position as at 31 December 2024, as well g8 the
income statement, statement of changes in net asset value, fund certificate transactions and cash flows
statement for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese
Accounting System applicable to cpen-ended funds and legal regulations relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements,

Other matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 were audited by another
independent audit firm. The auditor expressed an unmodified opinien on those statements on date 25

“DUONG VAN THIEU

Director Auditor

Audil Practising Registration Certificate Audit Practising Registration Certificate
Mo, 2417-2023-283-1 Mo. 5353-2025-283-1

INTERNATIONAL AUDITING AND VALUATION COMPANY LIMITED
Hanoi, 25 March 2025
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VIETINBANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND
67 floor, Cua Mam Market Shopping Center Building, 34 Cua Nam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha Noi

BO1-OM
INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2024
Linit: VIND
Mo. Items Code | Notes Yaar 2024 Year EIJZJ
| INCOME FROM INVESTING 01 4,558,972,996 4,507,061,5T6
ACTIVITIES
11 Dividends 02 5 1,827 844 655 1,488,712,401
1.2 Interast income 03 5 2 873,232,145 3,192,226, 103
1.3 (Loss)/gain from securifies 04 B {191,971 .271) (157, 442,338)
trading
14 Difference of 05 il 48 BT 466 (16,434 590)
(decrease)increase from
revaluation of unrealized
investmeant
1 EXPENSES FROM INVESTING 10 8,263,179 800,000
ACTIVITIES
2.1 Transaction expenses of 11 B B,263,179 900,000
investmant
in OPERATING EXPENSES FOR 20 8 984,454 223 929,460,846
OPEN-ENDED FUND
3 Management fee 201 617,019,438 658,023,227
3.2 Custody fee 20.2 37,391,877 33,849,173
3.3 Supervisary fee 203 13,574,430 12,298 517
34 Open-ended fund administration | 204 20,361,643 18,447,764
fee
3.8 Audit fes 208 43,200,000 40.000.000
3.10 Other operating expensas 20.10 115 806,335 132,742 165
IV | NET INCOME FROM INVESTING 23 3,566,255,594 3,576,700,730
ACTIVITIES (23=01-10-20)
¥l | PROFIT BEFORE TAX (30=23+24) an 3,566,255,594 3,576,700,730
6.1 Realized profit KR 3,516,388,128 3,583,135,320
6.2 Unrealized (loss)iprofit 32 49,867 466 (16,434 5909
Vil | CORPORATE INCOME TAX 40 & =
EXPENSE
Wil | PROFIT AFTER TAX (41=30-40) 41 3,566,255,594 3.576,700,730

o -F'-FF'_'_‘-
Praparer Accountant in charge
LE THI THUY DAD THI YEN
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PHAMN HAI SAM
Hanai, 25 March 2025
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VIETINBANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND
6" fioor, Cua Nam Market Shopping Center Building, 34 Cua MNam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha Nei

BO2-CM
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2024
{Full form)
Linit: VIND

No. ltems Code |Notes | Closing Balance | Opening Balance
L ASSETS
1. Cash and cash equivalents 110 10 58T 474,101 501,179,585
1.1. | Cash at bank for oparalion of the Fund 111 287 474 107 501,179,585
1.2, | Deposits with ferms under 3 months 112 300,000,000 -
2. Met investments 120 11 62,633 447 945 55,682,331,133
2.1. | investments 121 62 633 447 945 55,682.337,133
a Receivables 130 12 1.447 817,259 2.205.346,025
3.2. | Undue coupon Bends and interest 1,447 817, 259 2.205,348,029

receivables

TOTAL ASSETS 100 64,668,739,305 58,388,856,747
8 LIABILITIES
3 Payable to Fund Certificate 313 119,039 4048

Distributors
4. Tax and statutory obligations 314 113,011 6,088
6. | Accrued expenses 316 13 43,200,000 40,000,000
F Payables for fund ceriificate from kb i 23,279,618 8,015,000

investors
8. Payables for fund cerificate 318 15,016,312 -

subscription from investors
4. Fund management fee payables g 14 84 107,177 76,225,736
10. | Other payables 320 108 000,000 115,666,665
300 | TOTAL LIABILITIES 300 273,835,165 239,917,548
lL. NET ASSET VALUE 400 64,394, 904,150 58,148,939 1599

DISTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF

FUND UNITS
1. Contributed capital 411 15 45,282 891,800 43,343.091,300
1.1 | Subscriplion capital 412 311,237, 264,100 308,178 584.000
1.2. | Redemption capital 413 (265,044,272,200) | (264,835 492,700;
2. Shara premium 414 15 (11,167,756 804) {11.3&?,555,561}
3 Undistributed earmings 420 16 30,269,669,054 26,6893 413,460
I¥. | NET ASSET VALUE PER FUND UNIT | 430 17 | 14,217.41 13,415.96
V. | DISTRIBUTED PROFIT TO 440 - -

INVESTORS
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VIETINBANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND
&" fioor, Cua Mam Market Shopping Center Building, 34 Cua Nam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha Mol
Statement of financial position (continued) BOZ-QM

OFF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ITEMS

Unit: Fund units
ltems Code | Notes | Closing Balance | Opening Balance
Quantity of fund certificate in circulation 18 4,528,295.19 4,334,308.13

| 77 o ik
N - i Wl T Trithin VIEM
II ,.JF Lo I-ﬁ_ :‘
| B\ HEAN kG
3 ‘*R-;'\cmm:, T
Preparer Ace nt in charge b
LE THI THUY DACTHI YEN

Hanoi, 25 March 2025
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VIETINBANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND
&' fioor, Cua Nam Market Shopping Center Building, 34 Cua Nam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha Noi

BO3-QmM
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSET VALUE,
TRADING OF FUND CERTIFICATE
For the year ended 31 December 2024
Unit: VND
Nao. Items Year 2024 Year 2023
I Beginning balance of the Fund's net asset value 58,148,939,199 54,475,699,510
("NAVY)
Il | Changes in NAV during the period 3,566,255,504 3,576,700,730
I wihich:
1.1 | Changes in NAV due to market fluctuation and the 3,566,255,004 3,576,700,730
Fund's eperation during the period
1.2 | Changes in NAY resulting from profitfasset *
distribution to investors during the perlod
Il | Changes in NAV due to the redemption and 2,679,709,357 96,538,959
subscription of fund certificate
M.1 | Amount raised through additional offering of fund 4,225 065,985 2,230,125,021
units
.2 | Payment for redemption of fund certificate {1,545 356 628) (2,133,586,062)
v Ending balance of the Fund's NAV 64,394,904,150 58,148,939,189
:..:::__;T;_'.'."’?\_F ,“‘\:

& k;ql‘.ﬁum;l,m‘\'
[ WY TAANH VIEW
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:. | L 1\,(’_'1 .‘...--."lL qufl
. :.!::;::_._:"\\ vIET f
Preparer Accouftant in charge
LE THI THUY DAO THI YEN PHAN HAI SAM

Hanoi, 28 March 2025
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VIETINBANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND

6" fioor, Cua Nam Market Shopping Center Building, 34 Cua Nam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha Nol

BO4-CN
STATEMEMNT OF INVESTMENT PORFOLIO
Az at 31 December 2024
Market price or T *
fair value as at ge o
No. Asset type Quantity 311202024 Tn{?ﬂvg; o the Fund's total
assets (%)
(VND)
| | BONDS
1 | Listed bonds
TH1122016 100,000 100,334 .48 10,033,447 945 15:51%
2 | Untisted bonds &2 100,000,000 6.200.000.000 8.58%
VYOS TP.112023
Total 100,062 16,233,447,945 25.10%
I OTHER SECURITIES
1 | Certificate of deposits - - 0.00%
Total - - 0.00%
| OTHER ASSETS
1 | Receivables of coupan - 271,707,397 0.42%
bonds
2 | Interest receivables from - 1,176,109 862 1.82%
depasils
3 | Other receivables - - 0.00%
Total - 1,447 817,259 2.24%
IV | CASH
1 | Demand deposits - 587,474,101 0.91%
2 | Valuable papers - 45,000,000,000 71.13%
3 | Deposits with terms over - 400,000,000 0.62%
3 months
Total -| 46,987,474,101 72.66%
V | TOTAL PORTFOLIO 64,668,739,305 100.00%

VALUE
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Preparer Accouftant in charge 5 lepiity General Direcior
DAO THI YEN PHAN HAI SAM
Hanoi, 25 Mareh 2025
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VIETINBANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND
6 floor, Cua Nam Market Shopping Center Bullding, 34 Cua Nam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha Mai

BOS-QM
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2024
{Indiract mathod)
Unit: ¥ND
No. Items Code | Notes Year 2024 Year 2023
L | Cash flows from investing activities
1. | Profit before tax | 3,566,255, 5084 3,576,700,730
2. | Adjustment 02 (46 66T 466) 28,859,590
Unrealized {- gain) or {+ loss} from 03 {48,867 466) 16,434,590
exchange rates difference/ re-
evaluate unrealized investments
{+) Accrued Expenses o4 3,200,000 12,425,000
3. | Profit from investing activities before 0s 3,518,588,128 3,605,560,320
changes In working capital
{Increase), Decrease |nvestments 20 (6.901,249,348) | (6.968,570,700)
{Increase), Decrease in Dividend and | OF 757,528,770 (338,083,621)
interest recevables
Increasel(Decrease) In payables to 1 114,991 {16,642)
fund units distribution agent
Increase/(Decrease) in Tax and 13 106,912 (35,312)
statutory obligations
Increase/|Decrease) Subscription 14 15,264,618 6,965,000
Suspense Payable
Increasef{Decrease) Redemption 15 15,016,312 -
payable
Increasef{Decrease) Other 16 (7.666,665) (16,333,335)
payables
Increase/{Dacrease) In payables 17 7,881,438 (1,994,527)
for open-ended fund management
sernvices
Net cash flows from investing 19 {2,593,414,841) | (3,712,508,817)
activities
Il. | Cash flows from financing activities
1, | Proceeds from subscription of fund i 4225065985 |  2.230,125,021
units
2. | Payments for redemption of fund units | 2 (1545,356,628) | (2,133,586,062)
Met cash flows from financing 3o 2,679,709, 357 96,538,959
activities

20

¥ _Hus

T b ek el

Mg 2

¥




VIETINBANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND

&% floor, Cua Mam Market Shopping Center Building, 34 Cua Mam, Hoan Kiem disirict, Ha Noi

Cash flow statement (continued)

Hanoi, 25 March 2025

|

indirect melhod
BOS-QM
Uit VND
No. Items Code | Notes Year 2024 Year 2023
M. | Net cash flows during the period 40 86,294,516 | (3,615,969,858)
IV, | Cash and cash equivalents at the 50 501,178,585 4,117,149, 443
beginning of the period
1. | Cash at banks at the beginning of the 51 501,175,685 | 4,117,149.443
period
Cash at bank for aperation of the Fund 52 483 164 585 4 116,098,871
Deposits of Investors for fund unit trading | 53 8,015,000 1,050,572
¥. | Cash and cash equivalents at the end 55 10 587,474,101 501,179,585
of the period
1. | Cash at banks at the end of the 8 587,474,101 | 501,179,585
period
Cash at bank for operation of the o 421,694,482 | 493164585
Fund
Deposits of investors for fund unit o 165,779,619 8,015,000
trading
V. | Difference in cash and cash &0 86,204,516 | (3,615,969,858)
] eguivalents during the period
P T
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VIETINBANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND
&" floor, Cua Nam Market Shopping Center Bullding, 34 Cua Mam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha Moi

1.7

1.2

BOG-0M

SELECTED NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
For the six-month period ended 31 December 2024

THE FUND'S OPERATIONAL CHARACTERISTICS
The Fund's informatfon
The Fund

The VietinBank Bond Investment Fund (“the Fund”) was established as an open-ended fund on
September 8, 2017, in accordance with the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/0H14, dated November
26, 2018, Decree Mo. 155/2020/NE-CP, dated December 31, 2020, amending and supplementing
certain provisions of the Law on Securities, Circular Mo, 88/2020/TT-BTC, dated Movember 16,
2020, issued by the Ministry of Finance, which provides guldance on the establishment and
management of securilies investment funds, and other relevant regulations.

The Fund was granted a Certificate of Fund Unit Initial Public Offering No. 32/GCN-UBCK by the
State Securities Commission (SSC) on July 7, 201 7. It received its Operating License No. 27/GCN-
UBCK from the S5C on September 8, 2017, and operates with no time fimit.

The Fund's Operating Charler, orginally Issued on Aprl 26, 2021, was amended and
supplementad on May 18, 2024, following approval by the General Meeting of Investors.,

Fund Management Company

VietinBank Bond Investment Fund is managed by VietinBank Fund Management Company Limited
(‘the Fund Management Company”). VietinBank Fund Management Company Limitad was
established in accordance with the Business License No. S0/UBCK-GP issued by the SSC on 28
October 2010 and the latest amendment No. 46/GPEC-UBCK issued by the SSC dated 21 June
2024,

The Fund Management Company's Head Office is located on the &th floor, Cua Mam Market
Shopping Center Building, 34 Cua Nam, Hean Klem district, Hanol.

Supervisory Bank

The Supervisory Bank of the Fund for the period from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024 and at
the reponting date is Bank for Investment and Development of Vietnam JSC = Ha Thanh Branch.

The Fund's main activity information
Capital

The Fund's chartered capital raised In the initial public offering of the fund certificate is VND
66,000,000,000, equivalent to 6,600,000 fund certificate. As at 31 December 2024, the Fund's
contributed capital was VND 45,292 991,500 at par value, equivalent to 4,529,299.19 fund
certificate units.

Investment objectives

The Fund's investment objective is to maximize returns while presenving capital for investors by
primarily investing in bills, bonds, valuable papers, and ather fixed-income instruments. These
assels must compnise al least 80% of the Fund's net asset value (MAV).

Valuation and fund certificate trading

The valuation date is the date on which the Fund Management Company determines the net assel
wvalue (NAV) of the Fund in accordance with the Law on Securities and the Fund’s charter. It serves
as the fund certificate transaction date and |s also the first working day of the subsequent month
following the reporiing period for the preparation of monthly, quarterly, and annual reports, as
required by law,
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VIETINBANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND
& floor, Cua Nam Market Shopping Center Building, 34 Cua Mam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha Noi
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BOS-OM
Fund certificate trading frequency

Investars may buy, sell, convert, or transfer Fund certificates only on designated Trading Days.
The Transaction Date |s determined as follows:

* Trading occurs fwice per week, on Tuesdays and Thursdays,

+ Trading Days do not include public holidays or compensatory holidays as prescribed by law.

Any increase in trading frequency will be publicly annocunced by the Fund Management Company
In the Prospectus and disclosed in accordance with legal requirements.

Any reduction in trading frequency must be approved by the General Meeting of Investors,
ensufing that trading occurs at least twice per month, in compliance with applicable laws.

Investment restrictions
VietinBank Bond Investment Fund adheres to the following investment restrictions:

* Issuer Concentration Limit: The Fund must not invest in securities of a single issuer exceeding
10% of that issuer’s total outstanding securities value, except for government debt instruments.

» lzsuer Investment Cap: The Fund must not invest mare than 20% of its total asset value In
circulating securities, deposits with commercial banks, monsy market Instruments (inchuding
valuable papers and transferable instruments, if any) issued by a single entity, except for
government debt instruments.

= Group of Related Companies: The Fund must not invest more than 30% of its total asset value
in assets issued by companies within the same corporate group, defined as parent companies,
subsidiaries, or companies that own more than 35% of each other's shares or contributed
capital. This limit applies to:

o Deposits with commercial banks

Money market instruments, including valuable papers and transferable Instruments

Listed shares, shares registered for trading, and bonds listed on the Stock Exchange

Public fund certificates

Initial public offering (IPO) shares and public offering bonds

Privately placed corporate bonds issued by listed organizations, provided they have:
= A credit institution's payment guaraniee, ar
= The issuer's commiiment fo repurchase at least 30% of the issuance value

within 12 months
< Listed derivative securities, but only for the purpose of hedging rsks related to
underlying securities held by the Fund,

= Public Gfferings & Private Placements: The Fund must nol invest more than 10% of its total
asset value in:

o IPO shares and bonds offered to the public

o Prvately placed corporate bonds issued by listed organizations with a credit
institution’s payment guarantee of an issuer's commitment to repurchase at least 30%
of the issuance value within 12 months

* Leverage and Derivatives: At all times, the total committed value of derivative transactions,
outstanding loans, and liabilities of the Fund must not exceed its net asset value (NAV).

* Self-Investment Restriction: The Fund is prohibited from investing in its own fund units (VTBF
Fund units).

* Investment in Other Public Funds & Securities Investmenl Companies: The Fund may only
Inwist in fund units of other public funds and public securities investment companies managed
by other fund management companies, subject to the following restrictions:

o Must not invest in mere than 10% of a single public fund's total outstanding fund
certificates or a public securities investment company's outstanding shares,

o Must not invest more than 20% of its total asset value in fund units of a public fund or
shares of a public securities investment company.

o Mustnot invest mare than 30% of its total asset value in all public fund units and public
securities investment companies comblned.

* Prohibited Investments: The Fund must not invest directly in real estate, gemstones, or
precious matals.
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VIETINBANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND
&" floor, Cua Mam Market Shopping Center Bullding, 34 Cua Nam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha Noi
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

241

2.2

3.1

3.2

BOE-CM
The Fund's investment structure may temporarily exceed the prescribed restrictions only in the
following circumstances:
= Market fluctuations affecting the prices of assets in the Fund's investment portfolio,
« Execution of payment transactions in compliance with legal requirements, including investor
transaction orders.
= Corporate actions, such as division, separation, consolidation, or merger of Issusrs,
* Newly established, separated, merged, or consolidated funds operating for six (05) months or
less from the date of issuance or amendment of the Fund registration cantificate,
« Dizsolution process of the Fund.

Reporting, Disclosure, and Adjustment of Investment Structure

«  Adjustment due 1o permitted deviations: Within three (03) months from the date a deviation
arises for any of the reasons listed above, the Fund Management Company must notify the
State Securities Commission (SSC) and adjust the investment portfolio o comply with
investment restrictions.

= Adjustment due to non-compliance: If the deviation results from the Fund Management
Company’s failure to adhere o investment restrictions under the law or the Fund's charter, the
Company must;

o Adjust the investment portfolio within 15 days from the dale the deviation s
discovered,

o Compensate the Fund for any resuliing losses and bear all costs associated with
portfolio adjustments.

o If profits arise from the deviation, they must be fully aliocated to the Fund immeadiately,

*  Disclosure requirements: Within five (05) werking days of completing the pertfolio adjustment,
the Fund Management Campany must:

o Disclose information as reguired by regulations,
o Motify the S5C of the deviation, including:
* Cause and date of cccurrence or discovery.
*  Extent of damage and compensation (if any).
* Profits genarated for the Fund (if any).
= Corrective actions taken, imeline, and final cutcome of the adjustment.

ACCOUNTING PERIOD AND ACCOUNTING CURRENCY

Accounting period

The Fund's accounting pericd starts on 01 January and ends on 31 December annually.
MAccounting currency

The Fund's financial statements are prepared in Vietnam dong {"WND") which is also the Fund's
accounting currency.

APPLIED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEM
Statermnent of compliance

The Board of General Directors of VistinBank Fund Management Company Limited confirms that
the financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting Regime applicable to open-ended funds, and all relevant
statutory requirements governing the preparation and presentation of financial statements for
open-ended funds.

Accounting standards and system

The financlal statements of the Fund are prepared in Vietnamese Dong ("WND") in accordance
with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Circular Mo, 198/2012TT-BTC, dated Movember 15,
2012, issued by the Ministry of Finance on the aceounting regime applicable to open-ended funds,
and Circular Mo, 88/2020/TT-BTC, dated November 16, 2020, which provides guidance on the
operation and management of sacurities investment funds,
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3.3

34

4.1

4.2

4.3

BOB-QM
The financial statements of the Fund inciude:
Income statement
Statement of financial position
Statement of changes In net asset value, trading of fund units
Statement of investment portfolio
Cash fiow statement
Motes lo the financial statements

Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements and their utilization are not designed for those
who are not informed about Vietnam's accounting principles, procedures and practices and
furthermore are not intended to present the financlal position, investment position and results of
operation, changes in net assets and cash flows of the Fund in accordance with accounting
principles and practices generally accepted in counfries other than Vietnam.

L

Accounting documentation sysfem
The accounting documentation system of the Fund is the General Journal system.
Accounting astimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires the Board of General Directors of the Fund
Management Company io make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, llabliities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities as at the date of the financial
statements as well as the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Though these accounting estimates are based on the best knowledge of Board of General
Directors of the Fund Management Company, the actual results may differ.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Changes in accounting peolicies

The accounting policies used by the Company in preparing the financial statemenis are consistent
with those used in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks for the Fund’s operation, term depaosits,
certificate of deposits, short-term investments with an original maturity of less than three (03) months
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value,

Invesiments

The Fund's investments include investments in listed shares, listed and unlisted bonds and term
deposits at banks, cerlificates of deposits with terms of more than three (03) months.

Initial recogmition

The Fund records its investments on the ransaction date.

Investments are initially recognized at cost that includes only purchase price without any costs
incurred to acquire the investments.

For investments in bonds and bank deposits, the purchase price does not include accrued interest
(clean price) is recognized in “Investments”, the accrued interest not yet received up to the
acquisition date are recorded in "Accrued coupon and interest receivables” in the statement of
financial position.

Subsequent recognition
Revenues from investments after the date of acquisition is recognized in the income statement,

Investments are revaluated on valuation date at fair value. The gain, loss from revaluation of
investment is recognized in the income statement. Revaluation method is regulated in the
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- &% fioor, Gua Mam Market Shopping Center Building, 34 Cua Nar, Hean Kiem district, Ha Nei
Motes to the Financlal Statements (continued)

BOE-OM
= Valuation Manual in accordance with asse! valuation method as set out In the Fund's Charter and
Circular No, 88/2020/TT-BTC dated 16 November 2020 issued by the Ministry of Finance guiding
£ on the operation and management of securities investmeant fund.
The Fund's invesiments are valued in accordance with the principles and methods set out in the
Valuation book as follows:

#  Cash is the cash on hand balance as at the date prior to the valuation date;

- > Term deposits are principal balances plus sccrued Interes! receivables as at the date
preceding the valuation date;

B Treasury bills, bank drafis, commerclal papers, negotisble certificates of deposit, bonds (with
~ & remaining maturity of less than three months) and discounted money market instruments
are defined as: purchase price plus accrued interest up to the day before the valuation date:

k  Non-interest-paying instruments including T-bills, bonds (with remaining maturities of less
- than three months), valuable papers, and other interest-free instruments are valued as
follows:

Listed price on the trading system of the Stock Exchange.
=, In case no list price available, the price is determined according to:

i = Discounted cash flow model based on bid winning interest rate;
= Qranother interest rate specified by the Board of Representatives and the halding period
5 of the instrument.

= *  For listed bonds:

- Average quoted price on the trading system or another name, depending on the internal
regulations of the Stock Exchange at the latest trading date before the valuation date plus
5 accumulated interest;

= In case there is no transaction for more than 15 days from the valuation date, either the

discount rate (for government bonds, government-guaranteed bonds, munizipal bonds) or the
- market price of the bond fluctuations outside the Difference lmit (*), the band price is one of
5 the fiollowings:

Purchase price plus accrued interest; or
=  Face price plus acerued interest: or
Pt = Valued price under the wvaluation methods approved by the Fund's Board of
Representatives.
*  For unlisted bonda:
*  Listed price (if any) on quotation system plus coupon Interest up to the day before the
= valuation date; or
= = Purchase price plus accrued interest; or
*  Face price plus sccrued interest; or
= \Valued price under the valuation methods approved by the Fund's Board of
Representatives.
- *  Forshares listed on Stock Exchange:
= Closing price or another name, depending on the internal regulations of the Stock Exchange
of the most recent trading day before the valuation date;
In case there is no transaction for more than 15 days from the valuation date, one of the
following rates:
*  Purchase price; or
* Book value; or

& * Valued price under the wvaluation methods approved by the Fund's Board of
Reprasantatives,

- Investments are de-recognized when the rights to receive cash flows from securities investments
are terminated or the Fund has transferred most of the risks and rewards associated with
" ownership of the investmants.
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VIETINEANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND
g™ fioor, Cua Nam Market Shopping Center Building, 34 Cua Mam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha Nol
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

BO&-QM
Gain/(loss) from selling of the investments is the difference between selling price and cost of the
investments determined on weighted average basis at the end of the transaction date,

i) Difference limit:

- Govemmen! bonds, govemmeni-guaranteed bonds, municipal bonds: Difference limit s
known as the discount rate of the valuation period with an increase or decrease of 0.5% or
mare compared to the interest rate of the corresponding term on the VEMA interest rate
curve (this rate is determined by linear interpolation method) (for Government bonds) and
Increase or decrease of 1% or more (for government-guarantee bonds, municipal bonds)
compared with the discount rate of the latest valuation period.

- Corporate bonds: Difference limit is known as the increase or decrease of 1% or more (for
corporate bonds) compared to the bond prices of the latest valuation period or the purchase
price in case of na bond prices of the latest valuation perod.

Net asset value and net assef value per fund certificate

Net Asset Value ("NAV") represents the total value of the Fund’s assets after deducting all related
payables and payment obligations as of the date preceding the valuation date,

The NAV per fund certificate is calculated by dividing the NAV by the total number of fund
cerlificates in circulation as of the most recent transaction date preceding the valuation date, NAV
is rounded in accordance with applicable accounting and auditing regulations. Any residual amount
resulting from rounding is accounted for by the Fund.

Recelvables

Receivables include amounts arising from investment sales, accrued interest on coupon bonds,
bank depaosits, and other recelvables. They are recognized at cost, net of provisions for bad debts.
Receivables are assessed for impairment based on their overdue status or the likelihood of loss,
paricularly in cases where corporate debtors are undergoing bankruptey or liquidation, or
individual debtors are misging, have fled, are under prosecution, detention, or trial, are serving
santences, or have deceased.

For overdue receivables, the provision rates are determined in accordance with Circular No.
48/2020/TT-BTC, dated August 8, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Finance, as follows:

Overdue time Provision leval
From more than six (06) months 1o less than one (01) year 0%
From one (01) year to less than two (02) years E0%
From two (02) years to less than thres (03) years 0%
More than threa (03) years 100%
Payables

Payables are presented in the financial statements at their cost and include amounts payable for
fund unit redemplions, securities trading activities, remuneration for the Board of Represantatives,
a5 well as payables to the Fund Management Company, the Supervisery Bank, and other
abligations.

Contributed capital

Investors' contributed capital consists of capital contributions at par value and any applicable
premiums. The premium represents the difference between the actual subscriptionredemption
prnrs;an‘a. based on the Fund's net asset value (MAV) per uplt, and the par value of each Fund
cerfificate.

Fund certificales that entitle holders to dividends are classified as equity share capital. Each fund
unit has a par value of WND 10,000.

The quantity of fund certificates after distribution is expressed as a decimal and rounded down to
two decimal places.
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VIETINBANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND
E" ficor, Cua Nam Market Shopping Center Bullding, 34 Cua Nam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha MNoi
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4.8

4.9

BOE-QM
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Fund and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must
also be met before revenue is recognized:

Interest income

Interest income from deposits and bonds are recognized to the income statement based on accrual
basis unless collectabllity is in doubt.

Dividend

Dividends and profit-sharing are recognized when shareholders become enfitled to receive
dividends or when capital-contributing parties are entitled o receive profits,

Income from Securities Trading Activities

Income from securifies irading is recognized in the income stetement as follows:

= For listed securities: On the date the fransaction is confirmed by the Vietnam Securities
Depositary.

For unlisted sscurities: On the date the asset transfer coniracts are settied,

Expensas recognition

Expenses are recognized on accruals basls. The major expenses of the Fund are as follows, in
which the total fund management service fee, fund administration service fee, transfer agent
senvice fee must not exceed 2% of NAV/year:;

Managemen! fee payable fo the Fund Management Company

Fund manasgement service price |5 1% calculated on the total net asset valuefyear and not
exceeding 2% of net asset value/year and is paid monthly on the last day of the month to the
Company. Fund manager to perform investment fund management services for the Fund.

Management service fee is calculated according to the following farmula:
Management service fee = (x%"NAV at valuation date * actual number of days in period)/365
In which:

X% 1%
MAV: Met Asset Value of the Fund
Supervisory and custody fae

The price of the Fund's asset custody service, the price of the supervision service and the fund
management service paid to the Supervisory Bank is 0.11% (calculated on the Nel Assel
Valuelyear and is at least VND 35 million/manth with NAV of VND 150 billion or more and paid to
the Supervisory Bank according to the time limit and methed specified in the Supervisory Conifract,
the Fund Management Contract to perform supervision, depository and administration services to
the Fund.

The fee for supervision and depository services, the fee of fund administration services {excluding
value-added tax) payable Is calculated according to the following formula:

Supervisory service fee =(y%*NAY at valuation date*actual number of days in period)/365
In there:

s y%: 0.02%
«  MAN: Net Asset Value of the Fund

Custody service fee =(z%*MNAV at valuation date*actual number of days in period)/365
In there:

2% 0.06%
«  MNAY, Net Asset Value of the Fund

Fund administration service fee =(z%‘NAV at valuation date*actual number of days in the
period)/365
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VIETINBANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND
&" floor, Cua Nam Market Shopping Center Building, 34 Cua Nam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha Moi

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4.10

4.11.

 B0&-QM
In thare;

o Z%: 0.03%
»  NAWV: MNet Asset Value of the Fund

Transfer agant fiea
Transfer agent fee s paid to the transfer agencies of the Fund.

Transfer agent fee includes a fixed amount of VND 11,000,000 per manth including value added
1ax,

The fotal price of fund management services, fund management service prices and transfer
Bgency service prices must not exceed 2% of the Fund's net asset value at the time of service
perfarmance,

Annual fee payables fo the S5C

Annual management fees are specified in the Schedule of fees and charges in the securities sector
promulgated together with Circular No. 25/2022/TT-BTC dated 28 April 2022 of the Minister of
Finance stipulating the level collection, collection, payment, management and use of fees and
charges in the field of securities,

Tax

In accordance with prevailing tax regulations, the Fund is not subject to corporate income tax.
However, the Fund Management Company is required to withhold income tax for individual ang
institutional investors in the following transacions:

a. Dividends payment fo investors

When distributing dividends to investors, the Fund Management Company must comply with
tax withholging regulations as outlined in Circular No. TR/2014/TT-BTC dated June 18, 2014
(Circular 78), as amended and supplemented by Circular No. 86/2015/TT-BTC dated June
22, 2015, and Clrcular No. 1112013TT-BTC dated August 15, 2013 (Circular 111), as
amended and supplemented by Circular Ne, 92/2015/TT-BTC dated June 15, 2015 (Circular
92), issued by the Ministry of Finance. Additionally, the Fund adheres to Official Document
No. 10945/BTC-TCT dated August 19, 2010, issued by the General Department of Taxation
ragarding the tax policy on dividend distributions to investmeant institutions.

In accordance with these regulations:

= When the Fund Management Company distributes dividends to institutional investors,
whether domestic or foreign, it is required to withhold 20% of the distributed profit
except for portions that have glready been taxed in & previous phase and income from
tax-exempt bends under prevailing regulations.,

= When distributing dividends to individual investors, the Fund Management Company must
withhold personal income tax at a rate of 5% on the dividend amount,

b, Fund certificates redemption

The Fund Management Company is responsible for withholding, deciaring, and paying income
tax on fund unit redemption transactions involving Individual investors (both domestic and
foreign) and foreign institutional investors, in accordance with regulations on foreign
transactions. For unlisted securities transfers, the applicable tax rate is 0.1% of the transfer
value, as stipulated in Circular Mo, 103/2014/TT-BTC dated August 6, 2014, and Circular No.
TR0 ITT-BTC dated August 15, 2013, iszued by the Ministry of Finance.The Fund does
not withhald income tax on fund unit redemption transactions involving domestic institutional
investors. These investors are responsible for self-declaring and paying the applicable taxes
to the Government.

Related parties

Farties are considered related if they have the ability, directly or indirectly through intermediaries, to
control the Fund, be controlled by the Fund, or operate under commaon control with the Fund. Related
parties also include institutions and individuals who directly or indirectly hold vioting rights with
significant influence over the Fund, as well as key management personnel such as the General
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VIETINBANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND
6% floor, Cua Nam Market Shopping Genter Building, 34 Gua Mam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha Maoi
Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BOB-QM
Director of the Fund Management Company, members of the Board of Representatives, their close
family members, and companies associated with these individuals.

When assessing relaled party relationships, the nature of the relationship is considerad in addition
to s legal form.

I
X
L

412  Nil balance
ltems or balances specified in Circular No. 198/2012/TT-BTC, dated November 15, 2012, issued
by the Ministry of Finance regarding the accounting regime for open-ended funds, are not
presentad in the financial stalements. These financial statements are interpreted as reflacting a
zero balance for such lems.,
A INTEREST INCOME
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND WND
Bond coupon 1,827, B44 656 1,488, 712,41
Interast of demand deposits 3,471,202 3,711,062
Interest of term deposits 315,800,272 564,312,457
Interest recelvables from cerificates of deposits 2,554,160,671 2,624 202,574
Total 4,701,076,801 4,680,938,504
6. (LOSS)/GAIN FROM SECURITIES TRADING
Total value of tﬁ'::‘;:‘;:::; Gaini{loss) from
investment sold Investment in 2024
VND transaction date VND
VYND
Listed bonds 16,344, 728,383 16,537,960, 000 (193,220,617
Cerificale of deposits 38,200,000, 000 38,188, 750,654 1,248 348
Total 54 544 T29 383 54,736,T00,654 {191,871,271)
7. DIFFERENCE OF INCREASE/(DECREASE) FROM REVALUATION OF UNREALIZED
INVESTMENTS
Changes in
Purchase the
valug revaluation
according to Rovaluation Revaluation difference at
accounting Fajr value as  difference as  difference as 3111212024
books of 311212024 of 31112712024 of 311212023 compared to
Investments VND VND VND VND _ 31/12/2023
B 1 2 J=2-1 4 5=3-4
Unhstad bonds 6,200,000,000  &,200,000,000
(VDSH2425004)
Listed Bonds 10,000,015,068 10,033,447 945 33,432,876 (16,434 500 A9, 867 468
{TN1122016)
Cerlificate of 46, 000,000,000 46,000,000 000
Depasit
Total 62,200,015 069 62,233 447,945 33,432 876 (16,434, 590) 49,867 466

30

b o Rt A Y

kg




VIETINBANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND
6™ floor, Cua Mam Market Shopping Center Bullding, 34 Cua Mam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha Nol
Notes to the Financial Statements (conlinued)

10.

TRANSACTION EXPENSES OF INVESTMENTS

Brokerage fees for stock and other investments

purchase transactions

Custody senice fees for Opan-and funds -
Securities trading

Total

OPERATING EXPENSES FOR OPEN-ENDED FUND

Open-ended Fund management fee

Open-ended Fund asset custody sendce fee (*)

Supendsory senice foe

Open-endad fund administration sanice fea
Transfer agent senice fee

Audit fee

Other operating expanses

Inciuding:

Bank charges

Annual 55C's management fes

List providing fees

Board of Representatives remuneration
Total

{"): Details of fund asset custody service fee

Custody fee paid for supendsory bank
Custody fee paid for transfer agencies
Total

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Demand deposits in VND for operation of tha
Fund at;

~Jaint Stock Bank for Imestment and
Development of Vietnam Ha Thanh Branch
Deposits with tarms under 3 months In VND
Deposits of investors for fund unit trading:

In which:

- Deposits of investors from distribution agencies

Total

A

BOG-CM
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VIND
4 8258907 100,000
3,437,272 800,000
8,263,179 800,000
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
617,019,438 558,023,227
37,391,877 33,849,173
13,574,430 12,298,517
20,351,643 18,447 TG4
133,100,000 133,100, 000
43,200,000 40,000,000
118,806,835 132,742,165
11,973,500 9675 500
7.500,000 7.500,000
100,333,335 115,688 B85
984,454,223 929,450,848
Yaar 2024 Year 2023
VD VHD
37,021,167 33,541,303
370,710 307,780
37,391,877 33,849173

Closing balance

Opening balance

VND VHD
121,664 482 493,164,685
300,000,000 =
165,779.619 8,015,000
165,770.618 6,015,000
587 474,101 501,179,585
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VIETINBANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND
g™ fioor, Cua Mam Market Shopping Cenler Building, 34 Cua Nam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha Mol
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

12.

13,

14

RECEIVABLES

Expected bonds interest

Expectad intersst from termmn deposits
Expected interast from certificates of deposil
Total

ACCRUED EXPENSES

Audit fees
Total

FUND MANAGEMENT FEE PAYABLES

Management fee payable
Custody fee payable
Supenvsory fee payabla

Fund administration fae payable
Transfar agant fee payable
Total

Closing balance

BOS-OM

Opening balance

VND VHND
271,707,397 272 438 357
3,566,848 4,143,838
1,172,543,013 1,828,763 836
1,447,817,259 2,205,346,029

Closing balance

Opening balance

VND VND
43,200,000 40,000,000
43,200,000 40,000,000

Closing balance

Opening balance

VHND VHND

54 485,163 48,888 80T
8,786,786 8,855 405
3,534,094 3,163,410
5,301,141 4,730,114
11,000,000 11,000,000
84,107,174 76,225,736




VIETINBANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND

6® floor, Cua Nam Market Shopping Center Building, 34 Cua Nam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha Noi

Notes to the Financlal Statements (conlinued)

15. CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

Contributed capital of investors as of 31 December 2024 is as follows;

Subscription capital

Quartity (1)

Face walue (2)

Subscription capital premium (3)

Total value of issued fund certificates
(2= (2} (3)

Awverage Net Asset Value (5)=(4)/(1)

Redemption capital
Quantity (8)

Face valus (7)

Redemptio capital premium (8)
Total redemption wvalue of fund cedificales
(9)=(T+{8)

Asverage Met Asset Valus (10)={30(5)

Number of fund certificate in
circulation (11)=(1)-{8)

Current contributed capital (12} = (4} -
(9}

Undistributed earnings (13)

Current Net Asset Value {14) = (12} +
(13)

NAV per fund certificate (15)=(14)(11)

BOG-CIM
Movement
Unit 3122023 during the year IMMZ2024
Fund unit 30,817,858.40 305, 858.01 31,123, 726.41
VND 308,178,584,000 3.058,680,100 311,237,264,100
VMDD 32.193,581,234 1,166, 385,885  33,358,967,119
VD 340,372,165,234 4 225 085 985 344 597 231,219
VNDYFund 11,044,.64 - 11,071.85
unit
Fund unit 26,483 548,27 110,877.85 26,594 427.22
VND 264, 835,452 700 1,108, 779,500 265,044 272 200
VND 44, 081,148,785 436,677,128 44 517,723,823
VND 208, 916,639,485 1,545 356,628 310,461,896,123
WMDVFund 11,664.47 - 11.673.85
uinil
Fund wnit 4,334,309.13 1894, 550,06 4,529,299.19
VHND 31,455,525,739 2,679, 708,357  34,135,235,086
VHND 26,693,413,460 3,506,2585,604 30,259,669,064
VHND 58,148,939,1993 5,245 054 051 64,394,504, 150
VMNDVFund 13,415.98 14,217.41

unit

a5
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VIETINBANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND

&Y flaar, Cua Nam Market Shopping Center Building, 34 Cus Nam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha Noi

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Contributed capital of investors as of 31 December 2023 |s as follows;

Subscription capital
Quantity {13

Facea valua (2)
Subscription capital premium (3)

Total walue of issued fund certificates
(dy=(2)+{3)

Average Met Asset Value (5)=(4)/(1)

Redemption capital
Cuantlty (8)

Face vaiue (7)

Redemptio capital premium (&)
Total redemption value of fund cedificates
()=(7r+(8)

Average Met Asset Value (10)=(2)/(5)

Number of fund certificate in
circulation (11) = (1) - (B}

Current contributed capital (12) = (4) -
Undistributed eamings (13

Current Met Asset Value (14) = (12} +

MAV per fund certificate (15)=(14¥(11)

16. UNDISTRIBUTED EARNINGS

BOB-QOM
Movement
Unit 322022 during the year MM2023
Fund unit 30,649,494 39 168,384.01 30,817,858.40
VRND 308,404 043,000 1.683.640,100 308,178,584,000
WD 31,647,098, 313 545,484 921 32,183,681,.234
VND 338, 142,040,213 2,230,125,021 340,372,165,234
WNDYFund 11.033.55 - 11,044 64
unit
Fund wnit 26,320,477.23 163,072.04 206,483 549,27
VND 263,204,772,.300 1,630, 720,400 284 835492 700
WD 43, 578,281,133 502,865,662  44,001,146,795
VND  a06783,053,433  2,133,586,062 308,016,630,485
VMDIFund 11.656.68 - 11.6564.47
unit
Fund unit 4,329,017.16 5.291.67 4,334 309.13
VHND 31,358,986,780 96,538,959  31,455,525,739
VND 23,116,712,730 3.576,700,730  26,693,413,450
VND 54,475,689,610 3.673,239,682 5B,148,938,199
VNDVFund 12,583.85 - 13,415.96
unit

Closing balance

Opening balance

VND VND
Undistributed earmings at opening 26,653,413 460 23,116, 712,730
Unrealized (loss )/ profit 3 566,255 594 3,576, 700,730
Realized profit 3,516,388 128 3,583,135.320
Unrealized profit 49, 867, 466 (16,434, 550)
Total 30,259,669,054 26,693,413,460
17. MET ASSET VALUE PER FUND CERTIFICATE UMNIT
As at 31 December 2024
Mo WValuation Net Asset Value Guantity of NAV per Increaso
date VND fund fund lidecrease) NAV
cortificate certificate per fund
cartificate
1 31-12-2023 EB,148,939,199 4,334,300 1341598 -
2 01-01-2024 5B, 159,125,259 4,334 311 13,418.31 235
3 03-01-2024 BB 179,496,030 4,334 311 13.423.01 4.7
A 08-01-2024 58.241,412,682 4335129 13,434.76 11.75
5 10-01-2024 58,282,152,864 4135428 13,443.23 847
6 15-01-2024 68,333,640,358 4,335,465 13,454.59 11.76
7 17-01-2024 £8,359,000,161 4,335,835 13,459.69 47

ae
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VIETINBANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND
6% fioor, Cua Mam Market Shopping Center Bullding, 34 Cua Nam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha Noi

Notes to the Financial Statements (confinued)

No Valuation Met Asset Value
date VND
8  22-01-2024 58,409 691,076
9 24.01-2024 58,428 850,524
10 29-01-2024 58,587 354,110
11 31-01-2024 50,436,474,429
12 05-02-2024 59,485.613,025
13 07-02-2024 56,504,350, 164
14 12-02-2024 50,556,199,550
15 14-02-2024 58,576,838,526
16 189-02-2024 50,627,419,238
17 21-02-2024 50,655,640,495
18 26-02-2024 58,725,566,018
19  28-02-2024 50,746,764 503
20 29-02-2024 59,753 879,052
21 D4-03-2024 59,795,508,503
22 08-03-2024 59,795,169,805
23 11-03-2024 50,848,022, 506
24 13-03-2024 59,901,440,534
25  18-03-2024 59,952,360, 186
26  20-03-2024 59,988,713 761
27 25-03-2024 60,034,000,479
28 27-03-2024 60,084 451,021
28 31-03-2024 60,126,756 655
30 01-04-2024 60,137,041,062
31 03-04-2024 60,157 ,572,600
32 08-04-2024 B0,210,647,213
33 10-04-2024 60,225,408 658
34 15-04-2024 60,227,440, 344
35  17-04-2024 60,250 467 746
36  22-04-2024 60,337,422 431
37 24-04-2024 60,355,591, 711
38  20-04-2024 B0,374,150,458
39 30-04-2024 60,381,978 422
40  01-05-2024 60,388,845 652
41 06-05-2024 B0,458,966,000
42 08-05-2024 60,685 040 042
43 13-05-2024 60,771,803,274
44 15-05-2024 60,888,732,611
45  20-05-2024 60,800,816,535
46  22-05-2024 60,817,504, 545
47 27-05-2024 60,939,424, 708
48 20-05-2024 60,955,603 671
49  31-05-2024 61,006,750,614
60 03-05-2024 61,034,337,872
51  05-D8-2024 £1,045,876,613
52 10-08-2024 61,082,264 625
53  12-06-2024 61,125,648,188
54  17-DB-2024 61,179,303,550
85 15-06-2024 61,174,168,373
56 24-06-2024 61,270,386,383
57  28-D8-2024 61,379,105,458
BB 30-D6-2024 61,414,140,604
58  01-07-2024 51,425,508,368

BOE-QM

Guantity of NAV per Increase
fund fund H{decreasa) NAV
certificate cartificate per fund
certificate

4335838 1347142 11.73
4,335,732 13,476.12 4.7
4 417 360 13,485.36 13.24
4 404 672 13,493 .96 4.6
4,404 524 13.505.57 11.64
4,404 378 13,510.28 4.71
4. 404,373 13,522.08 11.78
4404 373 13,528.77 471
4,404 272 13,538.54 1177
4,405,640 13,543.24 4.7
4,406,155 13,555.03 11.79
4,408, 194 13,558.73 4.7
4,405,852 13,562.08 238
4,405,952 13,571.53 045
4,404,395 13,5676.25 472
4404 454 13,588.07 11.82
4,408 854 13,592.79 4.72
4,406 855 13,604.34 11.65
4407 622 13,610.53 6.19
4 407 524 13,620.80 10.27
4,408,211 13,627.03 623
4,405,293 13.636.37 834
4,408 291 13,638.71 2.34
4,410,505 13.635.61 0.50
4,410,232 13.652.49 12.88
4,410,380 13.655.28 289
4410612 13,655.12 {0.26)
4411707 13,658.99 387
4411707 13.676.66 1r.87
4,411,449 13,681.58 4.82
4,411,187 13 688K 6 5.02
4.411,188 13,688.37 177
4411189 13.680.135 1.78
4.411,189 13,705.82 15.67
4,431,388 13,694 57 {11.25)
4,430,979 13,715.21 20.64
4,438,057 13,719.97 4,75
4,438 480 13,721.12 1.15
4,438,585 13,724 .52 3.40
4,436,808 13,734.97 10.45
4,437 062 13,737.83 2.88
4 437 528 13.747.91 10.08
4,437 528 13,754.13 B2
4,436,593 13,758.63 5.50
4,436,332 13,768.64 9.01
4437624 13,774.41 5.77
4,438,184 13,784.76 10.35
4 439 087 1378077 (3.99)
4,440,755 13,797.29 16.52
4 447 352 13,801.28 4.0
4 447 352 13,808,158 T.B8
4 447 351 13,811.73 2.58

37
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VIETINEANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND
6" fioor, Cua Nam Market Shopping Center Bullding, 34 Cua Nam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha Noi

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)

No Valuation Net Asset Value Quantity of
date VND fund
certificate

B0  03-07-2024 61,488 250,182 4,450,378
61  08-07-2024 B1.485417,742 4,451 749
62  10-07-2024 61,438,638, 586 4,451,891
63  15-07-2024 61,583,244, 785 4,453 631
64  17-07-2024 61,653,331,822 4,481,529
B5  22.07-2024 &1,811,105,660 4,463 663
66  24-07-2024 61,884 659,387 4,469 691
67  29.07-2024 61,912,283,364 4,468,872
B8  31-07-2024 §2,085,574,120 4,470,523
63  05-08-2024 61,852,801,803 4,470,956
70 07-08-2024 61,967,295 565 4,471,854
71 12-08-2024 62,093,249 761 4,467 867
72 14-08-2024 62,228,306,136 4472426
a3 19-08-2024 62,231,768,054 4,474 302
74  21-08-2024 62,226,670,322 4 474 048
75  26-08-2024 62,255,447 261 4,473,859
76 28-08-2024 62,330,565,403 4,474,568
77 31-08-2024 62,400,017 818 4,482 306
78  02-09-2024 62,421,187,148 4 482 307
79 04-09-2024 62,463,896 336 4,482 308
B0  (05-09-2024 §2,588,438,901 4 483 506
81 11-08-2024 §2,608,749,636 4,483,448
B2  16-08-2024 62,750,399,108 4,484 830
83  18-00-2024 62,772 ,857,002 4,493,205
B4  23-09-2024 62,953,576,437 4,497,792
85  25-08-2024 63,080,979,451 4,506,138
86  30-08-2024 63,052 354,205 4459638
87  02-10-2024 53,082 800,751 4,400,714
B8  (07-10-2024 63,084 429 493 4,500,248
B9  09-10-2024 63,120,095,038 4,502,102
B0 14-10-2024 63,178,945,004 4.497 345
91 18-10-2024 63,221,059 697 4,499 095
82 21-10-2024 63,174,100,498 4,494 B72
931 23-10-2024 63,256,150,717 4,495 840
94  28-10-2024 63,456,735 349 4,505,101
85  30-10-2024 83,378,578,014 4,505,345
898  31-10-2024 63,407 522,715 4,506,585
87 04-11-2024 63,536,500,580 4,506,585
98  (08-11-2024 63,998,405,458 4,538,820
89 11-11-2024 §3,992,819,700 4,538,723
100 13-11-2024 63,801,811,138 4,516,002
101 18-11-2024 53,548,040,925 4,508,153
102 20-11-2024 §3,786,174,008 4,510,566
103 25-11-2024 §3,880,036,048 4512475
104 27-11-2024 53,823,025,351 4,514 066
105  30-11-2024 63,882 567,821 4 518,258
106  Dp2-12-2024 £3,839,458,541 4,518,257
107 04-12-2024 £3,861,349,451 4,516,291
108  09-12-2024 64,160,049,412 4 517,356
109  11-12-2024 B4,127,175.146 4,515,887
110 18-12-2024 64,125 261,268 4,516,274
111 1B-12-2024 64,145 154 886 4,519,008

28

BOE-OM

NAV par Increasa
fund Hdecreasa) NAV
certificate per fund
certificate

13,816.41 468
13,811.52 (4.89)
13,800.57 (10.95)
13.827.65 27.08
13,818.88 (8.77)
13,847 62 28.74
13,8455.4 (2.22)
13,851.02 562
13,883.29 3zzr
13,B65.67 (17.82)
13,863.89 (1.78)
13,897.74 33.85
1391377 16.03
13,808.71 (5.06)
13,808.38 (0.35)
13.815.38 7.02
13,920.96 14,68
13,821.41 (8.55)
13,026.13 4.72
13,935.66 9.53
13,850.71 24.05
13,064 .42 4.71
13,88211.7 27.28
13,970.62 (21.08)
13,9586.55 2593
14,001.12 4.57
1401277 11.65
14,018,289 6.52
14,017.89 (1.30)
14,020.14 218
14,048.05 27.0
14,051.85 3.90
14,055.33 3.38
14,069.93 4.6
14,085.53 156.6
14,067 42 {18.11)
14,069.97 255
14,098.59 2862
14,100.23 1.64
14,0888.3 (0.93)
14,127 .54 26864
14,1155.3 (12.64)
14,1411.5 262
14,1568.32 14.82
14,1388.7 {17.62)
14,145.11 6.41
14,135 48 (9.683)
14,140.22 4.74
14,203.21 62.99
14,200.35 (2.88)
14,188.71 (1.64)
14,154 52 14.18)
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VIETINBANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND
6% foor, Cua Nam Market Shopping Center Building, 34 Cua Nam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha Noi

Motes to the Financlal Statements {continued)

B06-GM
No Valuation Net Assat Value Quantity of NAV per Increase
data VND fund fund fidecrease) MAV
certificate certificate per fund
certificate
112 23-12-2024 64 206,875,724 4,520,008 14,204.75 10.23
113 25-12-2024 G4, 189,954,518 4,521,681 14,1966 1 {B.65)
114 30-12-2024 64,256 865,003 4,520,334 14,215.07 18.97
115 31-12-2024 64,394 904 150 4,625,299 14, 217.44 234
Averane MAY during the year 61,508,654, 604
Changes in NAV/und certificate dunng the year
- Highest level of the year (VND) £2.99
- Lowest level of the year (WND) (21.08)
MAV/fund certificate during the year.
- Highest level of the year (WND) 14,217.41
- Lowest level of the year (WND) 13,418 31
Az at 31 December 2023
No  Valuation Net Asset Value Quantity of NAV per fund Increase
date VND fund cerlificate f{decreasa)
certificate NAV per fund
cerificate
1 31-12-2022 54,475,698,510 4,329,017.16 12,683,684 -
2 02-01-2023 54 485 178,797 4,329,017.16 12,588.34 4.50
3 04-01-2023 54 514,658 880 4.329.017.18 12,582.84 4.50
4  08-01-2023 54,520,046, 114 432800217 12,597.04 420
5  11-01-2023 54,531,033 457 4 327 328.22 12,601.54 4.50
6 16-01-2023 54 575 453 766 4,327,003.6% 1261275 11.21
7 1B-D1-2023 54 500,084 777 4,326,6847.55 12,6177 4,42
8  23-01-2023 54,668,801 854 4,326 68717 12,635.27 18.10
8 25-01-2023 54,688, 140,933 4,326 68717 12,639.72 4.45
10 30-01-2023 54,735,300,328 4,320,687 17 12,650.62 10.90
11 31-01-2023 54,734,324 928 4,325,906.74 12,652 68 206
12 01-02-2023 54,743, 181,008 4,325,906 74 12,654.72 2.04
13 08-02-2023 54,777,323,180 4,325,085.74 12,665.02 10.30
14 08-02-2023 54,758,501,518 4,324 601.51 12,662.00 (2.93)
16  13-02-2023 £4.805,127.601 4,324 212.04 12,674.01 11.92
18 15-02-2023 54,810,327 648 4.323,705.30 12,678.78 477
17 20-02-2023 54 BEE, 270,855 4,323,342.08 12,690.70 1182
18 22-02-2023 54 B8T 375,657 4,.320,755.25 12,703.18 12.49
19 27-02-2023 54,859,069,527 4,314 450.78 12,715.18 12.00
20 28-02-2023 54 837,931,831 4,313,615.69 12,712.74 (2.45)
21 01-03-2023 54 836,278,008 4.313,619.69 12,712.35 {0.39)
22 06-03-2023 54,883,178,358 4,313,227.52 12,724 38 12.03
23 08-03-2023 54 904,005,045 431324562 12,728.18 4.80
24 13-03-2023 54,854 450,888 4,313,138.20 12,741.47 11.84
25 15-03-2023 54 984 401,813 4.312,280.24 12,746.03 486
26 20-03-2023 55,018,188,202 431231946 12,758.37 12.34
27 22-03-2023 55,002,052,578 4,309,386.45 12.763.31 4.04
28 27-03-2D023 §5,134,712,519 4,309,231.40 12,794.55 31.24
28 29-03-2023 85,144 737,759 4,308, 715,89 12,798 41 3.88
30 31-03-2023 55,145438,166 4,307 522.04 12,800.93 2.52
31 03-04-2023 55,143,825 418 4,307 822.04 12,800.56 (0.37)
32 05-04-2023 56.155,064,638 4,307 219.88 12,805.49 4.83
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VIETINBANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND
& floor, Cua Nam Market Shopping Center Building, 34 Cua Mam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha Mol

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Mo Valuation
date
33 10-04-2023
34 12-04-2023
35  17-04-2023
36  19-04-2023
a7 24-04-2023
38 26-04-2023
38  30-04-2023
40 01-05-2023
41 D3-05-2023
42  DB-05-2023
43  10-05-2023
44  15-05-2023
45  17-05-2023
45 22-05-2023
47  24-05-2023
48  29-06-2023
43  31-D5-2023
50 05-06-2023
81 07-06-2023
52 12-0D6-2023
53  14-06-2023
54 19-06-2023
55 21-06-2023
88 26-08-2023
§7 28-05-2023
68  30-06-2023
58 03-07-2023
B0 08-07-2023
61 10-07-2023
62 12-07-2023
63 17-07-2023
64 19-07-2023
66 24-07-2023
88 26-07-2023
67  31-07-2023
68 D2-08-2023
B9 0O7-08-2023
70 089-08-2023
Fi | 14-08-2023
T 16-08-2023
73 21-08-2023
74 23-08-2023
75 28-08-2023
76  20-08-2023
77 31-08-2023
78 04-05-2023
79 08-09-2023
B0 11-D9-2023
81 13-089-2023
B2 18-08-2023
83 20-08-2023
B4 25-09-2023

Net Asset Valua

VND

55 237 B48 524

55,233,775,857
55,240,412,754
55,273.428,741
55,319,965,523
55,206,534,377
55,302,828,550
55,314,185,410
55,338,927 637
55,380,825,558
55,356,227,321
55,384,431,208
55,394 694 808
55,438,534 287
55,445,460 685
55,420,080 548
55,495,137 824
55,472,728,015
55,540,121,058
55,702,711,168
55,698,301,457
55,744,864 474
55,781,085,882
55,670,771,548
55 688,130,297
55,700,345,295
55,726,622,690
55,708,516,617
55,767,737,012
55,776,603,683
55,821,073,071
55,830,072, 838
55,939,573 571
56,141,106,283
56,197 422,414
56,207,289,053
56,525,328 495
56,543,076,745
56,587 746,371
56,302,545,304
56,638,806,570
56,651,744,023
56,708,585,977
56,733,030,857
56,758,247,840
56,803,414 657
56,825,896 896
56,856,903 698
58,860,719,746
56,872,343,816
56,881,431,240
56,931,623,120

2

BO&-CM
Guantity of NAV per fund Increase
fund certificate lidecrease)
certificate NAVY per fund
certificate
4,306,238.56 12,827.35 21.86
4.304.819.92 12,830.38 3.03
4,304,958 89 12,831.80 1.42
4,3065,790.82 12 B36.89 5.19
4 304,511.35 12,851 .62 14.63
4301 717.72 12, 854,52 2.80
4 2948 B65.T1 12.861.52 7.00
4,293 BB5.T1 12,864.16 264
4,299 BB5.71 12,860.45 5.29
4,299 B65.T1 12,879.66 10.21
4,296 593.93 12,883.74 4.08
4. 295 379.68 12 893.95 10.21
4,294 815,44 12,898.03 4.08
4,204 815,44 12,8908.24 10.21
4.293,993.54 12,912 32 4.08
4.293,321.66 12,908.65 (3.67)
4,293,088.11 12,826 62 1787
4,292 65217 12.822.71 {3.91)
4,261 83428 12,940.88 1817
4,291,811.55 12,878.53 3r.6s
4 289 82527 12,983.81 528
4,288 04560 12,997.03 1322
4,290,088.86 13,002.31 528
4,280,088.86 12,976.60 (26,71}
4,280,081.37 12 980.66 4,06
4 289.678.26 12,984 .73 4.07
4 280678.26 1299086 613
4.290,431.98 12 984.36 8.50)
4 290.847.30 12,956.90 12.54
4 2089 764.45 13,002.25 535
4 288 82561 1301567 13.42
4 28837498 13,021.03 5.36
4, 288,143.34 13,0457 2414
4,301,789.03 13,050.64 5.47
4.301,710.91 13,063.97 13.33
4,300,710.08 13,069.30 533
4,320,768.65 13,082.23 12,93
4 320,585.77 13,086.88 465
4 320,378.49 13,097 .86 10.98
4,287,352.05 13,101.68 382
4,318 802.58 13,114,186 12.48
4,318,163.056 13,119.40 5.24
4,218,006,93 13,132.58 13.18
4,318,287.34 13,137.82 524
4,318,547.08 13,142.80 5.08
4,318,574.08 13,153.28 10.38
4 318,574.09 13,158.50 522
4,316,632.89 13,171.58 13.08
4,315,208.30 13,176.81 5.23
431341301 13,184.99 B.18
4 312 506,85 13,189.87 4,88
4,312,319.76 13,202.08 12.21
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Motes to the Financial Statements {continued)

BOE-OM
Ne  Valuation Net Assat Value Quantity of NAV per fund Increase
date VND fund certificate l{decrease)
certificate NAV per fund
certificate
B85 27-08-2023 56,923,156,232 4,310,084.42 13,206.897 4.89
86 30-09-2023 56,902,725,783 4,306,148.58 13,214.29 7.32
8y 02-10-2023 56,823 813,018 4,306,148 58 13,218.19 4.90
B& 04-10-2023 56,800,409,820 4,293, 88548 13,228.20 a.01
83 09-10-2023 56,752,124 122 4,286 263 51 13,240.46 12.26
80 11-10-2023 55,636,707 048 4,275 53439 13,245.45 499
81 16-10-2023 56,626,271,613 4.271,1368.18 13,257.89 12.44
92 18-10-2023 56,556,511,964 4,264 57558 13,261.93 4.04
93 23-10-2023 06,656,281, 286 4,261 387.70 13,271.79 B.86
84 25-10-2023 56,565,424, 944 4,260 738.46 13,275.96 417
85 30-10-2023 56,600,320 560 4,260 359 17 13,285.34 B.23
85 31-10-2023 56,534,365 288 4254 T7T4 89 13,267.27 1.53
97  01-11-2023 56,543,698 375 4,254 774,65 13,288.48 2198
88 D8-11-2023 86,580,017 912 4,253 956,68 13,300.43 10.87
29 08-11-2023 56,537,993, 7948 4,248 43363 13,304.83 4.40
100 13-11-2023 5B6,553,724,243 4,247 108.73 13,315.81 10.58
101 15-11-2023 56,558 480,105 4.248,063.01 13,320.21 440
102 20-11-2023 56,610,444 831 4,245.916.50 13,332.91 12.70
103 22-11-2023 56,618 136,824 4245 640 95 13,335.58 268
104 27-11-2023 56,671,028,213 4,245 527 37 13,348.40 12.81
105 29-11-2023 56,690,080 442 4 24575210 13,352.19 3.79
106 30-11-2023 56,706,761,188 4,245 75210 13,356.11 3@
107 04-12-2023 56,738 669,334 4,245752.01 13,363.63 7.52
108 06-12-2023 56,745,317 598 # 245 954 12 13,364.56 0.83
108 11-12-2023 56,786,050,638 4,246 028.04 13,376.26 11.72
110 13-12-2023 56,827,648, 124 4,247 045684 13,380.48 4.20
111 18-12-2023 56,881,576,803 4,247 005.36 1338333 12.85
112 20-12-2023 57,913,248 775 4,322,154.70 13.399.16 5.83
113 25-12-2023 57,945,790,307 4.322,415.90 13.405.88 6,72
114 27-12-2023 5B,106,565,012 4,334 19725 13,406.53 0.85
116 31-12-2023 58,148,839 188 4,334 30913 13.415.96 9.43
Average NAV during the year: 55,883,540,014
Changes in NAV/fund eerificate during the year;
- Highest level of the year (WND) 3765
- Lowvest level of the year (WD) (25.71)
MAV/fund cerificate during the year
- Highest level of the year (VND) 13,415.86
- Lowest level of the year (WHND) 12,588.34

18.  QUANTITY OF FUND CERTIFICATES IN CIRCULATION
As at 31 December 2024, the quantity of fund certificate in circulation is 4,529,295.19 units.
19.  RELATED PARTIES AND OTHER KEY CONTRACTS

Farties are considered relaied if one party has the ability to control or exert significant influence
over the other in financial and operational decision-making.

The significant transactions during the period from January 1, 2024, to December 31, 2024, are
as follows:
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Motes to the Financial Statements {continued)

BOG-CM
Related parties Relationship Transaction Yoy iﬂﬁ
Gmnn;t:ﬂﬂné:r:z::und The Fund

M 4

Marisgement Company anﬂgﬂfmpan it Management fees 617,018,438
Limited Cepenpiy
Joint Stock Commercial Bank deposits interests 12,778,355
Bank for Investment and Supendsory Supenisory fees 7,021,167
Dewelopment of Vietnam -  Bank Custody feas 13,674,430
Ha Thanh Branch Fund administration sendce fee 20,381,643
Fund Representative Board ot SRR (56 RSP BTN 100,333,335

Representatives  Remuneration

Apart from remuneration, there are no contracts in which the Fund and any member of the Fund
Representative Board are parties, where a member has a significart interest in the contract
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VIETINBANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND
6% fioor, Cua Mam Market Shopping Center Building, 34 Cua Nam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha Noi
Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)

20.

BOB-0M
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OQBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Fund holds investments in listed bonds, receivables, cash, and deposits, all of which arise
directly from its operations. its financial labilities primarily include payables to fund umnit distribution
agencies, service providers, investors, and management fee obligations. The Fund does not hold
or Issue any derivative financial instruments,

The Fund is exposed to markat risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Fund Management Company has established a control system to maintain an optimal balance
between the cost of risk occurence and the cost of risk management. The Fund's Board of
Represemtatives continuously oversees the risk management process to ensure an approprisie
equilibrium batween risk and contral.

Additicnally, the Board of Representatives reviews and approves policies for managing each type
of risk, as summarized below:

Market risk

Market risk refers to the risk that changes in market prices will cause fluctuations in the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument. It encompasses four key types of risk: interest rate
rigk, curmency risk, commodity price risk, and other price risks, such as equity price risk. Financial
instruments subject to market risk include deposits and securities investments,

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that changes in market interest rates will cause fluctuations in the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument. For the Fund, interest rate risk primarily
relstes to certficates of deposit and bank deposits, which are highly liguid and not held for
speculative purposes or capital appreciation,

To manage interest rate risk, the Fund Management Company monitors market conditions and
seehs to secure competitive interest rales while operating within its established risk management
framewaork,

The Fund Management Company considers the impact of interest rate risk on the Fund's
performance to be insignificant, as the Fund does not hold any debt securities.

interest rate sensitivity

The Fund does not conduct a sensitivity analysis on interest rates, as its exposure fo interest rats
risk is minimal 23 of the balance sheet date,

Currency risk

The Fund was not exposed to foreign currency risk during the period from January 1, 2024, lo
December 31, 2024, as it did not engage in any transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

Market price risk of bonds

The Fund's investmenis in listed bonds are subject to market price risk due to uncertainty in future
bond values. To manage this risk, the Fund imposes limits on its investments, and all bond
investment decisions are reviewed and approved by the Board of Representatives.

As of the financial statement date, the fair value of the Fund's investments in listed bonds is VND
5,000,000000. A 10% decline In bond prices would result in a decreaze of YWND 500,000,000 in
the Fund's operating results, depending on whether the decline is significant or prolonged,
Conversely, a 10% increaze in bond prices would lead to a corresponding increase of WND
500,000,000 in the Fund's operating resulis.

Credif risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that & counterparty may fail to fulfill its obligations under a financial
instrument or customer contract, resulting in a financial loss. The Fund is exposed fo credit risk
through its financial investment activities, including bank deposits and bonds.
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VIETINEANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND
6™ floor, Cua Mam Market Shopping Center Bullding, 34 Cua Nam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha Mol
Notes to the Financial Statements (continuad)

BOB-C0M
However, the Fund Management Company sssesses the Fund's credit risk exposure as low, This
is because the Fund's bank deposits and accrued interest receivables are primarily held with
reputable banks In Vietnam, as approved by the Board of Representatives, Additionally, the Fund's
bond holdings consist of government-guaranteed bonds, government bonds, or listed corporate
bonds, further mitigating credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk refers to the risk that the Fund may face difficulties in meeting its financial obligations
due to a shortage of capital. The Fund's exposure {o liquidity risk primarily arises from mismatches
in the maturities of its financial assets and liabilities.

To manage liquidity risk, the Fund Management Company regularly assesses lquidity needs,
analyzes cash inflows and outflows, and monitors liquidity levels. It ensures that the Fund maintains
a sufficient amount of cash and cash equivalents to support its operations and mitigate the impact
of cash flaw fluctuations.

The table below provides a summary of the maturity profile of the Fund's financial [iabllitles based
on contractual undiscounted payments:

On From 03to From1to Overs
demand Lessthan 12 months Syears years Total
VND 03 months VND VND VND VND

Asat i
December 2024
Payables to fund . 118,038 = . o 119,039
unit distribution
agencies
Tax snd statutory = 113,011 " - - 113,014
obligations
Accrued - 43,200,000 - = - 43,200,000
expenses
Payables for fund - 23279619 - - - 23,278,518
unit fram Investors
Fayables for fund = 15,018,312 - = - 15,016,312
unit subscriplion
from investors
Fund = B4107174 - - - B4,107,174
management
senice fee
payables
Other payables - 108,000,000 - - - 108,000,000
Total - 273,835,156 = - - 273,835,155
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VIETINBANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND
6% fioor, Cua Nam Market Shopping Center Building, 34 Cua Mam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha Noi
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BOE-OM
On Lessthan From 03to From 01 Owver 05 Total
demand 03 months 12 months to 05 years VYND
As at 31
December 2023
Payables to fund - 4,048 - s s 4,048
unit distribution
agencies
Tax and statutory - 6,050 - - - 6,003
obligations
Accrued = 40,000,000 - - - 40,000,000
Payables for fund - B.015000 - - = 8,015,000
unit subscription
frem imestors
Fund - V6,225,738 - - - 76,225,736
management
senice fee
Other payables = 115,666,865 - - - 115,666,665
Total - 238,917,548 = - = 239,917,548

The Fund assessed that the risk concentration for payment is low. Sources of funding were deemed
to be sufficiently available to meet the Fund's current obligations.
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VIETINEANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND
£ floor, Cua Nam Market Shopping Center Building, 34 Cua Nam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha Nol
Motes to the Financial Statements {continued)

21,

PERFORMANCE INDICES

Performance indices
Management fee/fverage MAY (%)

Custody and Supendsory fees/Average NAV (%)

Administration fea, transfer agent fee and other senices
fees paid to other providers/Average NAV (%)
Audit feefAverage NAV (%)

Legal advisory fees, price quotation sendces fee and
other expenses, remuneration of the Board of
Representatives/Awverage NAV (%)

Operating expense ratiodAveraga NAV in the reporting
period (%)

Porlolio tumover rate (%) = (Total purchases + Tolal
sales during tha year) ! (2 x Awerage NAY in the
reporting period)

Cther indices
Fund scale at the beginning of tha pariod
Value of fund units at the beginning of the period

Quantity of fund cerlficate (n circulation at 1he beginning
of the period

Change of fund scale during the perod

Cuantity of fund cerdificate subscribed in the period

Capital mised during the year (at par valus}
GQuantity of redeemed fund cedificate in the year
Capital redeemed during the year (at par value)

Fund scalz a1 the end of the period

Total value of fund cedificate in circulation at the end of
the period

Cuantity of fund cerificate in circulation at the end of
the period

Fund Management Company and related parties of Fund
Management Company' ownership ratio at the end of
the perod

Top 10 imestors’ ownership ratio at the end of the period
Foreign investors’ ownership ratio st the end of the
period

Mumber of imestors atl the end of the peried (including
nomineea transactions)

MAN per unit at the end of the perdod (WVNDIunit)
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Year 2024 Year 2023
1.00% 1.00%
0.08% 0.085%
0.25% 0.27%
0.07% 0.07%
0.21% 0.24%
1.81% 1.88%
61.43% 35.48%
43,343,081,300 43,280, 171,600
4,334,308.13 4,.329,017.16
305,868.01 168,364.01
3.058,680,100 1,883 840,100
110,877.85 163,072.04
1,108,775,500 1,630, 720,400
45,282 991,800  43,343,001,300
4 520, 200,19 4,334 30913
82.28% S5 4%
a7.48% 99 56%
0,405 0.51%
360 123
14,217.41 13,415.96
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B0s-QM
22. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE PERIOD

There has not been any other matter that arose since the reporting date required to be adjusted
or disclosed in the Fund's Financial Statements.

23 COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

The comparative figures are data on the financial statements 2023 of the Company audited by
Mam Viet Auditing and Accounting Financial Consulting Services Co., Ltd. (AASCN).

Some Indicators of the financial statements for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2023 have
been restated as follows:

Income Statement:

Items Code Prior year ltems Prior year Difference
Restated

Dividends a2 1,488,712 401 Dnidends - 1,488,712 401

Interest Income 03 3,192,226,103 Interest income 4,680,038 504 (1,488,712,401)
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VIETINBANK BOND INVESTMENT FUND

8" floor, Cua Nam Market Shopping Center Building, 34 Cua Mam, Hoan Kiem district, Ha Noi

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BOS-0OM
Cash flow statement:
Items Code Prior year items Prior year Difference
Restated
Profit before tax 01 3,578,700,730 Profit before tax 3,578,700,730 -
Adjustment 02 28,859,590 Adjustment for MAY 28,859,580 -
increase from investing
acthvitles
Unrealised Gain or oz 16,434,590 Unrealised Gain or 16,434, 550 -
{Losz) from FX valustion/ {Loss) from FX
Investment revaluation valuation
increase of Accrued o4 12425000 Increase of Acored 12,425 000 -
Expensas Expenses
Profit from investing 05 3,605 560,320 Profit from Inwesting 10,923 629 457
activties before changes activties before (7,318,060, 137)
in working capital changes in working
{increase), Decreasa 20 (increase), Decraase -
investments (5,968 670,700) Imestments (6,988,570, 700)
(Increase), Decrease in o7 {338,083,621) (Increase), Decrease (338,083,821) -
Cividend and interest in Dividend and
recehables interest recelvables
Increase/{Decrease) in 11 (16,842) Increasef(Decreasa) in {16,642) -
payables to fund units payablas to fund units
distribution agent distribution agent
Increase/{Decraase) in 13 (35,312} Increasef{Decrease) in {35,312) -
Tex and statutory Tax and statutory
obligations obligations
increase, (Decrease) 14 £,955 000 Incremse, (Decreass) 6,965, 000 -
Subscription Suspense Subscrption
Fayable Suspense Payable
Increase/{Decreasa) 18 (16,333,335) Increase/(Decroase) {16,333,335)
Other payables Other payables
Increased(Decrease) in 17 (1,984,527) Increase/(Decrease) in {1,984,527) -
payabies for open-anded payables for open-
fund management ended fund
Met cash flows fram 18 Met cash Mlows =
investing activities (3,712,508,817) from/(used in) (2,712,608,817)

investing activities
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BOs-GM
Cash flow statement (continued);
Items Code Prior year Itams Prior year Difference
Restated
Cash and cash 50 4,117,149,443 Cash and cash 4,117,148, 443 -
equivalents at the equivalents at the
baginning of the period beginning of the
period
Cash at banks at the 51 4,117,149 443
beginning of the perod ;-‘\\\
Cash at bank for 52 4,116 098,871 A
cperation of the Fund y,&k
Deposits of imvesltors for 53 1,060,572 V J |
fund unit trading |
Cash and cash 55 501,179,585 Cash and cash 501,179,585 Sn
equivalents at the end equivalents at the 3;"’
of the period end of the period e
Cash at banks at the and 58 501,179.585 Cash at banks at the 901,178,585 -
of the period end of the period
Cash at bank for 57 493,164,585 Cash at bank for 501,179,585 (8,015,000)
operation of the Fund aperalion of the Fund
Dsposits of investors for 58 8,015,000 Deposils of investors - 8015000
fund unit trading for fund unit trading
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Preparer Accouhitant in charge
LE THI THUY DAO THI YEN

Hanol 25 March 2025
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